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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RXPORT

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the

Municipal Legistature ard P€ople of
the MunicipalitY of Corozel
Corozal, Puerto Rico

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govem-mental activ-ities' the busifless-typ€

activities. each major fund, una tft" ugg"g't" i"taining fir-na.lnformation of.the Municipality of

:#;i;; #;;. tr," v* "na"a '1"?lo, zoil' wh"ich collectivelv comprise the Municipalitv's

il;i-ffii ;t",i,"no i,li""a i' tr'" 
-dtL 

of contens These financial :t'",n""1'-L:,1:
*."".riUifrw "f,ft" 

Uutricipstity of Corozal's management' Our responsibility is to express oprnlons

on these financial sBtements based on our audit'

weconductedourauditinaccordancerrithauditingstandardsgenerallyaccoptedin-theUnitedStatesof
America and the standards applicabl€ to ri"*"i"i'"'aitt *ntii"d'ti G-n* -"nt 

Auditi g Stdndards

;],;:il;iil ;;;;;i[, c",lJ.r 
"r'n" 

u"itJ iltes those staadards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable *"'*'"" ''t"tli*f'"*er 
the financial statements ale fiee of material

;i.#;;. 
"; ;t 

-i,"r"a"' 
"*Inlni,lg "" 

a test basis' evidence suPporting. the amounts and

disclosures in the fmancial statements a" 
""'ail "ft() 

i""fta* assessing the iccounting principles used

anrt sisnificant estimates made by management- as welt as evaluating lhe.ovemll linancial starcmenG

p."r.n-ution. W" Ueti.re thal our audil provide( a reasonable basrs lor our opmron

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly' in 
-all -material 

respects' the

resDective financial position ol ttre govemie'ntall"'tiuities, th"'uusin"ts-qle altivities' each maior fund'

;",ffi ;;" il;ini,tg r*a iifot.nui;n ti t1," rvr"ti"ip'rftv "f 
corozal. of the commonwealth of

pueno Rico. as ofJare J0, 2112, ana ue rispeoir..t-g". in rin-.ial position. and where applicable'

;;il;;;;f;;,;;1"".ir,"" ",a"a 
il J*r"*ity *1*' 

"."ounting 
principles senerallv accepted in

the United States of America'

ln accordance with Govemment Audit Staida s' we have also issued our report dated December 13'

2rI2 on our coisideration of tne Municipitifr oi Coto"'t'" intt-ut tontrol over financial reporting and

our tests of its compliance *itt, "".t 
ln p.Ji.'io* oi tu*i, ,"g'tutiont, 

"ontmcts 
and grant agreement and

###; il#;;." .r t'"t *pti it i" J"*tibe the sipe of our restirg of.inremal control over a

ffiJffi#;; ;i "..pri"*" "i'a 
trt" i"*rtt oi thut t""ting -d ttot to provide and opinion on the

intemal control over hnancral *p"arg i';*r"piiur,... ttr-ar ..po.t is an inlegral part of an audil

performed in accordance with aou"-'"i) iii i[i'a"'at and should be considercd in assessing d'e

results oforrr audit

Acaounling principles generalty accepled in the United Stales of Afierica tquir. lhatlhe ManaRement s

Discussion and Anrtysk ^d 
,h" 8,d8";;' c;;;;;;t" informarion on pagcs 1 through I I and 56

il:ffi'fi ;;;il";""pri"'*itt'" i*l' ii"*"ial stat€ments such information" altkoush not a

Darr of rhe brsic financial statements 't ;'"i;;; 
;; G;'"t-enul Accounling standards Boald' :vl:

X;ffiel ffi;J; ;r.,iiut pon of r,n-'"iut repo(ing for ptacing the basic financiat statements rn an

Mailing lddlBss Box 757, Oor3do' PR 00eE

G



,nnroniate oDemtional. economic, of historical context. we have applied certain limited procedures to the

;:;iilJ'.,,fi;;;;; i"i.-"ii"" in accordance with auditins standards generallv accepted in the

il;;J#JJ;;;;tar. *hi;h ;".irt"a .r irquiries of manasement about the methods of preparins rhe

inio..ution una 
"o*pu.ing 

the information for consistency with managementls reponses to orr lnqurtes'

iir" lJ"-ir*"i"i .ti"m;nts, and other knouledge we obtained during our.audit of ihe basic financial

.;;;;;. w;;" not 
"*p."r. 

anal opinion or pioride ary assurmce on the information b€cause the

ffiitej,';;oJ; ao *i p,oria" us with sulficient evidince to express an opinion or provide any

asssurance,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial smtements that collectively

"".*J.i]. 
rfr" naroi"irrlity oI coroz{l ol$e Com-monuealth ofPueno Rico s financial statement' The

;:"#;;.;;;;';;;'ilini 
-*a 

i,ai,ia*r nonmajor tund financial statements and schedule of

"-t""'ir-#. 
?ti"J.r"l ui*J., us ."quit"a ry US 

-office 

-of 
Managenent and BudgPt circulat A-133'

Aidits of States. Local Go,rernmentes, ana Uon-niq Orgdnizotions, arc presented for purposes of

,fr'f,i.#r 
"r"irtf,- 

*J u." nor u ,"quit a part of tie financial stalemenls' Such inlormation is the

r"*r."ififO, .I.-"g"ment and was derivei fiom and relates directly to the underlying accounting and

;;;;;.;; toi*pare the financial statements The information has been subjected to the auditing

...*ir."tlJka i; the audit of the financial statements and cerlain additional procedures' including

ffiil;;;i;;lltng such inro',ution aitectlv to the underlving accounting and other records used

to oreoare the financial statements or to the fi;ancial statements themselves' and other additional

;;H;t ;;;;ilce *ith auditing standsrds generally accepted in the united states of America ln

#|" ;;;;;;.'il;;;;tnine ;a inai-uia,ur noniajor rund financial statements and rhe schedule of

;*;[i;;;i 
-r;;;i 

;;'il. are fairlv stared in all marerial respecls in relation ro rhe financial

statements as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the Purpose of forming opinions on th€ financial statements that collectively

."#*ia",rt. n'ir"i"irrlity ofCoroz{l's financial ialements The introduclory and stalislical sections are

;":#;-;;';il'il;:: or 
"aair;on,t 

analvsis and are not a required pun of rhe basic fianancial

L'",o."i.. ir"il,ft.,i.",ion tru. no, ben subject lo the auditing procedures applied in Ihe audit of the

i*i"_ir.-"i"f t""r*ts, and accordingly, we"do no[ express an opinion or provide any assurance on it'

Toa Baj4 Puerto fuco

StampNo.26623g8oflhePuertoRicoSocietyofcedfie'lPublicAccountantswereaffxedtother€cordcopyof
this rcpo(

Ltc.41214
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COMMONWEALTH OF PTJERTO RICO
MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

our discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Corozal (the Municipatity) irnancial performance provides an

or"*J* .f *" Munici'patity's financial activities for the fiscal year ended Jure 30' 2012 Please read it in

conjunction with the MuniciPality's financial statements'

Management of the Municipality of Corozal (the 'Municipality") imPlemented St4tement No 14 ("Statement") of

ti" Cir"-rn".uf e*ounting Standards Board ('GASB")' This Managernent's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

i;-p.;; as a result of tie requircments ol such Statem€n! and it has been designed accordingly with the

followings goals:

a) Assisr the reader in focusing on significa{t financial issues,

h) Provide ar overview ofthe Municipslit/s financialactiviry'

cf id.ntifo .la"g.t in ttte Municipality's financial posilion (its ability lo address the

nexl and subs€qumt year challenges).

d) Idetrliry any materi;l deviations from lhe financial plan (lhe approved budgel)' andl

e) Identi& individual fund issues or concems.

FINANCIAL EIGELIGETS
TheMunicipality Govenm€ntal Activities net assets iaoeosedby $2.470'28E ot 1o/o'

The MunicMity Business T)'pe Activities net assets decr€ased by 5122,457 due to depreciation charges The

il"i*;" TW" A"ti"iti"s revenue fiom Municipality contributions increase'l$33202 ot l4o/r'

In the fund financial statements, the govemmental reveitrtr- incteased $875'180 (or 4%) white govemmental

expenditures itc.cated $4,245,703 (ot 22%).

The General Fund Balance (the primary op€rating fund) reflecte4 on a curr€nt financial resource basis' a deoeose

of $204,112.

The Joint resolutions Fund, which accounts for PR Govemment restricted grants for sp€cial purPoses, decteased by

$585,,140.

The Capital Project Fund Balance, which is reserved for major capital expenditures' rcf7gcted a decrease of

$3,004,45 t.

The Debt Servic.€ Fund which is reserved for lhe long term debt amortization and rslated intercst payment'

increasdby $1023a3.

On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceeded actual expenditues by $240326'

Capital expendituts for ac-quisition of vehicleg construction and imProvements of recreational facilities' and

infrashucture amounted to $7,640,500.

Dudng curent year the Municipality issued no long term debt



COMMONWEALTH OF PT'ERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF COROZAI
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USING THIS ANI\ruAI RNPORT
This annual report consists ofa series ofnew financial statements with a change in the focus liom previous financial

statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a whole (govemment-wide) and the major individual

firnds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major firnd) allow the user to address relevant questions, broade, a

basis for comparison (y€ar to year or govemment to govemment) and eniance the Municipality and its component

unii s accounlabilit).

Reporting the Municipality as a Whole
Oni of the most important questions asked about the Municipality's finances is, "ls the Municipality as a whole

better off or worse off as a result of the yeaCs activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities report information about the Municipality as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer

this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is

similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. AII ofthe cunent year's revenues and expenses are

taken into account regardless ofwhen cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Municipality's net assets and changes in drem. You can think ofthe Municipality's

net assets -the difference between assets and liabilities- as one way to measure the Municipality's financial health, or

financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Municipaliryls net assets are one indicator ofwhether its

financial 
-health 

is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such

as changes in the Municipality's property tax base and the condition ofthe Municipality's roads, to assess the overall

health of the Municipaliry.

In the Statement of Net Assers and the Sratement of Activities, we divide the Municipality into two kinds of
activities:

Govemmental activities - Most of the Municipality's basic services are reported here, including the public safety,

sanitation, health, housing, public works, sports and recreation, and general administmtion. Property taxes,

Municipal taxes, franchise fees, state contributions and federal grants financ€ most ofthese activities.

proprietary business t,?e activities - The Municipality includes in its rePort as a business q?e activity the

opeiations of the Historic and Tourist Center of Cibuco. This activity is important because the Mrmicipality is

financially accountable for it.

Fund Finetrcial Statements
The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant fimds, not-the

Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has two kinds offund which are the governmental fund and proprietary

tund.

Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the

Govemment Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Govenment Wide Financial Statements, Government

Fund Financial Statements focus on near term inflows and oudlows of expendable resouces, as well as on balances

of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year- Such information is useful in evaluating the

Municipality's near term financial requirements.

Because the focus of govemmental firnds is narrower than that of th€ govemment wide financial statements, it is

useful to compare thi information presented for govemmental funds with similar information presented for

govemmental activities in the govemment wide financial statements- By doing so, users of the basic financial

itatements may befter unalerstand the long-term impact of the Municipaliry's near term financial decisions.



COMMONWEALTH OF PIJERTO RICO

MIJN ICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS

Both of the Govemmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Govemmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govemmental funds

and govemmental activities.

proprietary funds are used when the Municipality charges customers for the services it provides-whether to outside

customer;or to other units ofthe Municipality-these services are generally reported in proprietary funds, Proprietary

iunds are reported in the same way that all aciivities are reported in the Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of

Activities, b;t provide more detaii and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

Itrfrastructurc A$ets
Historicalty, a govemment's infiastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc ) have not be€n reported nor

a"p.""iu,"a'i, go'r"-.ent financial statements. GASB 34 .equires that these assets be valued and reported within

thJ gou"--"niut 
"olurnn 

ofthe Gove.nment-wide Statements. Additionally, the government must elect to either (a)

a"pi""iu," ,t 
"." 

assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to

m;intain the seryice deliv€ry potential to near perpetuity- Ifthe govemment develops the asset management system

Ithe modified approach) whic'h periodically (ai least every third year), by category, measues ard demonstmtes its

io"lni"r*". ofio""tty 
"stablish;d 

levels qfservice standards, the govemment may record its cost ofmaintenarce in

lieu of depleciation. The information about the condition and maintenance of condition of the government

infrastructure assets should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local govemment-and its Perforrnance

overtime.

As ofJuly t, 2003, the Municipality commenced the prospertive reporting of infrastructure assets, and retroactively

.po.t tfr" fti"t .l"uf costs of iniastructure assets during the fiscal year beginning July l, 2003 Also' the

M;icipality elected to depre4iate inftastructure assets instead of using the modified approach'

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TEE MI]MCIPALITY AS A WEOLE

Net Assets
As troted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's financial Position. The

n4rni"ip"fiyt na assets of govemmental activities totaled $36,880,920 at the end of current year' compared to

$34,410,63i at the end of thi previous- year; this rzcrease of S2'410,2EE represents the operational result of

o"n",**^oveteqlendi,utes.ThenetassetsoftheproprietarybusinessD?eactivitiestotaled$4,661'827at
the"naor"u.."nty"".,comparedto$4,784,3?4attheendofthepreviousyeal]hisdecreaseof$122,547wasdue
to depreciation charges. The Mmicipality reported a combined net asset of 541'542'747 '

ThelargestportionoftheMunicipality'snetassetsistheinvestmentincapitalassetssuchasland,buildings,
,.p.-J.*r!, t"fti"f"s, equipmeni, iniiasrructure, etc, less any outstarding rclated debt used to acquire those

*.'"t , *p**rtirg ,fr" net amount of $34,574,987 The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide ser'/ices to

itscitizens;consequently,thes€assetsarenotavailableforfufuresp€nding.Althougtr"theMunicipality'sinvestment
i, i" 

""prii 
**,! i" *ported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resourc€s need€d to repay this debt

nrrri t" ir-"ia"a rro* ttre oebt service run4 since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilitie;. The amoufis restricted for debt s€rvice $2,246,569, arnount restricted fol olher purposes $1,033,112 and

amountsrestrictedfotcapitalprojects$4,525,886,r€presentsanotherPortionoftheDetassetsTheseareresouces
subject to extemal restrictions for the purPoses explained above'

A comparative analysis ofgovemment-wide fnancial data is presented in next page-



COMMONWEALTH OF PTJERTO RICO

MT]NICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Condensed Statement ofNet Assets

As of June 30, 2012 and 20ll

Curent asset

Capital assets-net

Other assets

Total assets

Curent liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities'

Invested in capital assets,

net ofrelated debt

Restricted funds
Committed tunds
Deficit

Total Det ass€ts

Govenmental Activities
2012 2011

$ 7,493,00s $ 7,s71,653
42,t53,160 37,714,70E

7.50s.850 10.486.255

58.152.015 55-778.616

5,444,226 4,981,513

15.826.869 16.385.596

.4A)p5 2t.361.109

29,913,160 26,439,164
7,805,567 11,699,436

t,716,403 920,081

Q.554.210\ (4.9?.180)

$ 36.880.920 $ 34.411.507

Pmprietary Fund
2012 2011

$ 1,308 $ 10,071

4,661,E27 4,784,374

4.663.135

1,308

1.308

4,66t,827

4.194.445

10,071

-]*"

4,784,314

$4.661.827 $4.784.374

Chstrg€. iD Net Assets

The Municipality's govemmental activities net assets ,ircte4ses by $2,470,000; due to excess Ievenues over

.*.*n"".. eoo-rio*t"ly 30 percent of the Municipality's revenue came ftom taxes' while 63 percent resulted

ffi;;" #:;;;b,r;lni-i,i"rraine r"d"-l uid. 
'charges 

for services and other murces provided 7 percent of

the total rcvenues. Current peiod revenues ircreased by $8r5, I 80 (4%") while exPenses deoeoseil $109'706 (3%)'

The Municipality's expenses cover a mnge of services' The largest expenses were for geneml govemment

J*lnir*,iir" sanitaiion, pubtic works, iousing municipal poli@' health' sports and rccr€alion' interest and

depreciation.

The Business q?e activities net assets decreas€d by $122,547 due to depreciation charges' Total revenue of.the

i*'i*.. ,# 
"lil"i,y 

*^e from fe€s and Municipality contsibutions The largesl expenses wene for depr€ciation'

*a" "*riii"^. 
rhe Business Type Activiries revenue from Municipality conrihutions increased $3.1.202 or

'l3o/o.

A comparative analysis of govemment_wide oPerational data is prcsented in next page'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PIJERTO RICO

MI'NICIPALITY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CoDdeNed Statemont of Activiti€s

For the yerrs etrded June 30, 2012 aod 2011

GOWRNMI,NTAI ACTIVITIES:

hogmm revenres:

Charges for services $

Operating grants and contributions

Cagital grants and contributions

General revenues:

PmPertY taxes

Municipal licrnse tax

Sales taxes

klterest and investment eamings

- Miscelaneous

Grants and contributions not rest cted

Total revenues

Expenses

General Administration

Health
Housing

Emergency management and safety

Sports and rccreation

Sanitation

Elderly centers

Interest on long-tem debt

Depreciation
Public works

Total expenses

Excess revenues over expenses

BUSIIIESS TYPE ACTNITIES:
Revenues:

Grants and contributions

Fees

Total revenues

Expenses:

Operating and maintenance

Depreciation

Total exp€nses

Excess revenue over expenses

7,163,359

19,513,191

7,040,347

501,671

1,142,220

7 t9,174
791,152

l,l52,4rl
321,429
798,458

2,196,084
2,373,557

t7,042903

$Lt7!4.

2012

1,138,387

2,143,073

2,369,593

2,590,652

I,183,461
1,475,207

391,628
457,831

20tl

$ 1,083,609

3,573,960

1,169,011

2,903,301

1,122,259

t,422,681
363992

6,999,198

l's,63s,011

1A',t1,22t
458,331

1,02E,600

653,808

472,004

1,131,505

281,308

641,154

2,047,607

t7,152,6@

$ !ry42

$ 273,6M
36,651

310257

310,336

122,468

4J2,aM

$ (r22,s47)

,7

$ 240,404
36,6s5

277,059

277,137

122,389

399,526

$ _!4491



COMMONWEALTH OF PT]ERTO RICO

MLNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. Excess revenues over expenditures

. Net hansfer to other funds

FINAN'CIAL ANAIYSIS OF TTIE MIJMCIPAIITY'S INDTVIDUAI FUNDS

Asnotedearlier,theMunicipalityusesfundaccountingtoensureanddemonstratecompliancewilhfinancerelated
legal requirements.

Govemmental Funds
'Ihe focus of the Municipality's govemmental funds is to provide information on n€ar_term inflows' oudlows' and

i"i"n"* .r"*p*a"tr" .""ouLrlSu"h info..ution is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requirements'

tn fu.tl"rt-, ,nt"."*"d fund balance may serve as a useful measure ofa govemment's net resources available for

spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's govemmental funds reported combined ending fund

ialances of $9,2f+,62g a decrease'of $3,762,294 in comparison with the -prior.year' 
There are reshicted and

-*-ioJ n,ri urfr*e amounting to $9,5i 1,9?0. This is 

'he 

fiud balance that it is not available for new spending

becanse it has already been restricted or comfiitted for the following purposes: l) to pay debt senice$2'246,569'

ii-i. p"v i.. 
""pi"f 

p-:ects $5,560,7E5 3) for otherpurposes $1,694,616 The unassigned firnd balance amounts

to $192,659.

Within the governrnental funds, it is included the Geftral Fund which is the chief operati'g fund of the

il;;;tp;itar: As of June 30, 2b12, the general ffund has a balarce of.$854'l63 Tte tund balance ofthe general

frlrri direaedby $20q,112. Key factors in the decrease ofthefirnd balance are as follows:

: $ st6,z:s

$'120,341

Revenues lrrctedsed by $1,113,780 (9%) due to an iaoease in Construction taxes of $323'440' an i"crease of

$559,738 in Contributions from Govetnment of PR. an i"crease of$204'423 for Contrihutions in liew oftaxes fiom

ii""rif" gr".ry Authority of P& net inoeose of $26,179 in all other revenue items Expenditures i"ct€6ed

$1,0?9,637 (94) due to i $415,781 hoease h,General administration, a $487'22E increase in capital expenditures'

ania net rzcreare of$176,628 for all other expenditures categories'

The Capitrl Proj€ct Fund Balance, which is reserved for major capital expenditures' rcfleoled a decreose of

ii,oo+,+it a* to'excess expenditures over revenues of $3,72i,133' and net transfers from the general fund of

izll,oil2, no p.o"""a" m.loanswas reported Capital expend-itures for acquisition ofvehicles' construction ard

i.p-r"."rt.'of *".".ti.nal facilities, and infrashucture in this firnd amounted to $5'063'520'

The Joint Resolutions E\ndblance decrcoseil by $585,440 due 1o excess expenditures over revenues-

TheDebtserviceFundbalanc€reported4,,izcrealeof$l02,343asaresultofexcessrevenuesoverexpenditures
of$103,678, and net tmnsfers to geneml fund of$1,335'



COMMONWEALTH OF PIJERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS

other Governmenhl F tadgbaTances decfeaseal by $70,634 due to excess expenditunes over revenues'

Busitress-type Activities net assets decr;as€d W $122'541 Revenues of the Municipaliry's business-type

activities reported $3l0,zsz *n 
" "*p"oset 

umountjto $43i'804' including a cha-rge for depreciation of $122'468'

ilrt;;;; iil actirities r"e *""i"" a"ir"^ii $1,404 (i07") and re,enue from Municipalitv contributions

i"i^"a $;.;i)oz 1tlN!. Total expenses 
'l"easedbv 

$33'278 (8%)'

GEIIERAL FIIND BUDGETARY EIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget in order to include increases

in revenues that were identifiea during tire'course of the fiscal year based on current developments that positiv€ly

affected the Municipality'. nnan""s tn"'""t"s 1<lecreases; in tudgeted expenditures were also made since the law

mandates a balanced. budgel.

ln summary the general fund actual revenues were ovu' budget by $122'943 and actual expenditures werc undet
^trir"i'iv 'Sir i,ig3, f. t a ta lworutte iitlrrrcr of $240';26' The mosl significant hdividual vanaaces for

revenues was $46,954 on r tuaget ln Constru"tlon Taxes and $43,694 in Rent, and the most significant individual

variance in expenditures were $4s,356 ani-d4i ,sgi io*' a"dgi b' rinance Department and Municipal Council

respectively.

CAPITAL ASSETS AI{D DEBT ADMIMSTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipality's investrnent in capital assets, including business type activities' as-ofJune 30' 2012' amounts to

i;;,;;:;;i -ii;;;,]il a"p'""i"tio' 'i ii:'ril'"+ss' t"u'inj u n"t book varue or s47'6r4'eE7; or which

"" 'ce'l f^r oovemmenr"r *ti'itlt -a S+'Oei'82; for business type activities This investment in

Ij;,1]';lllli,li"?:"'-:'b.;';;l;p;m*ts. .4uipm"nl vehicres. inrra(nucture and construction in

;:r*.J;fr#;; *."o u." i,"r, ,r,ui?" ,"-"iry i.*r*our. -d of value only ro rhe state. such as roads.

Lriiges, streeu and sidewall's. and similar ilems

Actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assels for governmental activilies wer€ $7'640'500 for lhe year'

6.r.".*'1,," iit"rg;; r; tr,e v.,r tot'tea siii;iii' "i*rt;"r'iz 
r no oE4 are related ro sovernmental acliviries and

$122,468 to business g?e activities'

The Municipality fmances a significant portion of its constnrction activities through bond issuances The proceeds

from bond issuances de"ignat"a fbr 
"on.t 

u"ti-on 
""tiriti"a "." 

*..itt"a in its entire8 for such purposes and cannot

be used for any other pl.t por".. 'a'' or:un"'JO, 
'ZOri 

trt" rrauni"ipntity^ has $4''''359 of unexpended procteds

from bond issuarces and $l5l,l?5 fi"*^ 
"tft"t 

't61**t' for " tot"l oi $4'403'534 that are committed to future

mnstruction activities, includirg "ttpl"t;;';ith" 
ipo* Cout'' the reconstruction of the '?laza Publica"'

infrashuctu.€ constuction and other project'



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MI]NICIPALITY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Debt Administ.ation

The puerto Rico L€gislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal bonds and

;;;; ;;;;;;;";i ;f which the eood fa;' credit and taxing power of each municipalitv mav be pledged See

,.Limitations on Ability of Municipafities to issue ceneral ottilation Debt The Municipal Bonds" fof a general

description of such limitations.

The applicable law also requircs thal in order for a municipality to be able to issue, additional general obligation

bonds and notes the municipality must rrave sufficient "payment iapacity" 
. 
Act No 64 provides that a municipality

ffi #;;;;:?ry-"r, capacity" to incur additional general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's

i.A".pii., frirOu"a the annual amounts collected with respect t; such municipality's Special- Additional Tax (as

a"f,rJU"[*i, * p..iected by GDB, will be su{ficient to service maturity ofthe municipality's outstanding geneml

"iife"d 
d;i-a ,h; additional proposed geneml obliSation debt ("Payment Capacity")'

The Municipality is required under applicable law to lely the Sp€cial Additional Tax in such amounts as shall be

;i.J'fJ;.;"y-"nt of.is general obLigarion rnunicipal bonis ard notes ln addition' princiPalof and interest

.r""ii *"".*f .Uiig",i.n municiial bonds an"d notes and on all municipal noles issued in anticipation ofthe issuance

;; ffi;a;ltA;;; bonas isiued bv the MuniciPaliry constitute-; {irst.lien'on the Municipalitv's Basic Tax

*r3"r".. a""r'.iinglv, the Municipality's Basic Ta-x revenues would be available to make debt seflice payments on

-"r"*i-.Ofit ir" irrnicipal bonds und not"t to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the

iir"r.itiirri.*iti, ;i,[;o;;vt o, deposil in rhe Municipalitv's Redemprion Fund- are nol suflicient to cover

such debt seryice. It has n"r". b""n n*"lf to apply Basic iaxei to pay debt service on general obligation debt of

the Municipality.

During the year ended June 30, 2012 the Municipality did not issued long term debt As of June 30' 2012 the

Municipaliry I-ong Term Debt is composed as follows:

$ 12,60s,000
635,000

1.185.293

il4.-. A25291

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Advances liom CRM

ofter long tenn obligations consist of$2,03?,000 of sccrued c-ompensated absences such as vacations and sick leave

and related estimated tax liability.

As ofJune 30,2012th€Mufcipalityr€demptionfimd(debtservic.)hasresourcasof$3,l04,4l3,restriotedforthe
payment of long term debt principal and hterest'

ECONOMIC FACTORS AI{D I{EXI YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on Property and municipal taxes as well as co-ntri-butions and grants to carry out

;;e;r;#;; ;,t"tti".. niioa"i[v, pt6ptttv taxes, municipal taxes and.PR.Goveroment contribulions have

been predictabte Fedeml grant t"'"'ul' it"y u"ty if new grants are available but the reveflue also is very

prEdictable.

l0



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MLNICIPAUTY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Factors considercd when preparing the Municipality's budget for lhe 2012-2013 fiscal year'

ln summal.r' a,l revenues and expendltures for the geneml fund were budgeled in $12'82q'065 which represents a net

a""..^" oiSt.+es,zse or t0o/o in estimated revenues: and for exp€nditure appropnatlons

The most significant changes presented between the budget for fiscal year 2011_2012 and lhe one for fiscal year

2012-2013 are the following:

Finance Department btdget re.luctio't of $(1'609'165)

frlti" wils o"po.tn" nt - bvdget reductio't of (408'096)

i*it tion o"pu.t-"nt - budget iacteae of 142'433

E*rg*ry M'-nge."nt Defa-rtment - budget izcrcase of 13:^'21^?

Condbutions to [iistorical Center budget i'ctedse of 70'095

Municipal Police Department - budgel i'tct?4s? ot 
'11991

Personnel Department - brdgel incaase ol

FINANCIAI.; CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements arc designed to present users (citizens' laxpayers' customeN'-ilve.s1ors.g9

"*d;;;;,-h'', 
general overview of the 

"Municipality's fmarc::. 3nd. 
to- denonstmte the Municipalitys

""".r""tffrty. 
ff y* have questions utout O" t"pott or ned additional^frnancial information' mntact the

il*i"ip"fiayl, Cfti"l'financial ttlficer at P.O. Box Tllior #9 Cervantes Stre€t' Comzal' Puerto fuco 00783'

t1



COiT'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

II,UNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

GOVERNI ENTAL BUSINESS TYPE

ACTIVTTIES ACTIVITIES

$ 1,833,719 $ -

2,400,000

ASSETS

Cunent Assets:
Cash
lnvestrnent
Accounts receivable:

Other
Taxes

Due lrom other govemments

Total curent assets

Noncurent Assets:

Cash held with fiscal agent

Capital Assets (net of depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Cunent Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to other govemmental units

Delered Revenues
Accrued interest on Loans

Cuaaent Portion of long term debt

Total curent liabilities

Noncunent Liabilities:

Advanc€s from CRIM Law 42

Advances from CRIM Law 146

Advances from cRlM - other

Bonds Payable
Notes Payable
Legal claims and judgements

Accrued compensated absences

Less: Repoded as cunent Portion

Total noncunent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
lnvested in Capit€l Assets, net oI related debt

Non-spendable
Rest ic,ted

Committed
Deficit

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are integral part

See auditol's aepo{

26,900
693,874

2,538,512

7,493,005

7,505,850
43,153,160

50,659,010

58,152,015

1,308

1,308

4,661,427

4 6€,1.827

2012
TOTAL

$ 1,833,719
2,400,000

2A,208
693,874

2.$A,512
7,494,313

7,50s,850
47,814,987

55,320,837

62,815,150

201'l
TOTAL

$ 2,020,967
2,800,000

168.62',l

590,823
2,007,313

7,587,724

10,486,255
42,499,0A2

52,985,337

60,573,061

1,430,741
1,878,668
1,116,973

3A2.420
635,424

5,444,226

963,542
221,751-

12,605,000
635,000

2.037.000
16362,293

(635,424)

15,826,869

21,271,O95

1,308

1 308

1,308

1,432,U9
1,878,668
'1,'116,973

3A2,420
635,424

5,445,534

963,542
221,751-

12,605,000
63s,000

2.037.000
16362.293

/1635,424t

15,826,869

21.272.403

u.574.987_

7,805,s67
1,716,403

(2,554,21O\

$!1@M-

6v,690
1,679,433
1,039,182

375,760
935,403

4.684,468

986,441
232,838

11,417
13,110,000

670,000
200,000

2.'t 10.303
17,320,999

(935,403)

16,385,596

21,070,0u

31,223,538
307,116

11,699,436
920,087

(4,647,180)

s 39.502.997

29,913,160 4,661,827

7,E05,s67
1,716,403

(2,5 ,210\

of the financial statements.

t2
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COITIMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENOITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNTIENTAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2Ot2

2012

$(3,762,294)Net changes in fund batances - iotal governmental funds

Reconciling items:

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures'

However, in the statement of activities the cost of these

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reporled as depreciation expense' This is the amount by

which c.pital outlays ($7.640,500) exceed depreciaton

expense ($2,196,084) in the cunent period'

comoensated absences and legal claims net decrease reduces

bno Lrm liabilities in the statement of net assets and are not

co;idered as expenditure in the funds statements

Other items

Bonds proceeds provide current financial resources to

ooveanmental funds but issuing debt increases long{erm

iiabilities in the statement of net assets Repayment of

bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds'

but the .epayment reduces long-term liabilities in the

statement of net assets. This is the amount by which

repayments exceeded Proceeds'

Changes in net assets of govemmental activities

5,444,416

273,303

(5,964)

520,427

$_2A79!88

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements'

See auditols report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

friluNlclPAllTY oF coRozAL

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNO

HISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO

(PROPERTY OF MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

June 30,2012
2012 2011

ASSETS
Cunent Assets:

Petty cash
Cash in Bank

Accounts receivable:
Other
Allowance fo. bad debts

Total curent assets

Fixed Assets:
Land
Buildings and impovements
Equipment, tumiture and fixtures
Vehicles

Accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets

Other asseb:

Total assets

LIABIL]TIES AND NET ASSETS

Cuneflt liabilities:
Accounb Payable - fade
Other

Total cunent liabilities

Net asseb:
Net investment in fixed assets

Unrestricled

Net asseb

Total liabilities and net assets

-$

1,308 10,071

1,308

1,308

444,367
5,533,562

249,600
117,180

6,344,709
(1,682,882)

4,661,827

10,071

-'10,071

444,fi1
5,533.562

249,600
1'17,180

6,344,709
(1,560,335)

4,7U.374

$ 4,093,1!! $319!141

1,308 $ 10,071-

1,308

4,661,427_

10,071

4,7U,374-

4,661,827

$ lSEJlq

4,7U.374

$7f9!14!

The
See

accompanying notes are integral

lndependent Auditors' Report.

part oI the financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND

HISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO

(PROPERTY OF I\iIUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30' 2012
20'l.2

REVENUES:

Admission fee
Rental fee
Other income - municipal contribution

Total revenues

EXPENSES:

Operating and maintenance

Depreciation
Other

COST OF OPERATIONS

EXCESS COSTS OVER REVENUES

OTHER

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Prior Period Adjustments

BEGINNING NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

$ 12,151
24,500

273,606

310,257

2011

$ 13,555
23,100

240,4M
277,059

310,336
12r,468_

277,137
122,349

432,804

(122,547)

399,526

(122,4671

(122,5471 (122,467)

4,7U,374

s iqq1.g?l

4,906,841

$ !1e/.374

The accompanying notes are integral part of ihe financial statements'

See lndependent Auditors' Report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNO

HISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO

(PROPERTY OF MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30' 2OI2

CASH FLOWS FRO OPEMTING ACTIVITIES

Changes in net assets

Adjustrnent to convert changes in net assets

to cash provided by operating activities:

Oepreciatton expenses
(lncrease) Decrease in accounts receivable -

lncrease (Decrease) in accounts payable -. trade

Other items

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPEMTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACNVTTIES

(lncrease) Decrease in other equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (OECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are integral paat of the financial statements'

See lndependent Auditors' Report.

2012

$ (122,547)

2011

$ (122!67)

122,464
8,763

(8,763)
79

122,389
10.294

(10,294)
78

2t
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COMMOI{WEALTTI OF PIJf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPAIITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statemetrts

Fiscat Year Ended June 30' 2012

1. Organiz3tiolr and SumBary of Sigtrifrcant Accounting Polici€s

The Municipality of Corozal of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the ,'Municipality,,) is a local

g"r".i"ri1""ir*J-inl zss *;,1, full legislative, fiscal and administrative powers to opemt€ as a

govemment.

The Cornmonwealth's Constitution provides for the separation of powers, of the executive' l€gislative

and iudicial bmnches of the co..onrJtn and the municipalities. Howeve-r, the Municipality's

:::*;;;i:;; 
"onsists 

of execurite and lesislative branches onlv A Mavor' elected elery

F:lji."]':';';:.i;;;.:"-.'"1*.,r'..t*''i* frwer of the Municipatirv rhe lesislative po,ner of

;;:'Jill.iJ;;;;i.J'iv ,t. vr"i.ip"r ksislature' uhos€ members are also elected everl

il'"J#: til:,'lrd;i- 
-p",i''"' - Il '*"'ii'"1 

6v the General Justice coun svstem of the

i*r,ion*"atttt. t ii"tt has iurisdicrion over tie MuniciPaliq'

The Municipality assumes either full or sharei responsibility. for providing. services to its citizens

;;;6;ii; housing welfare, p'Lti" 
""f"ty, 

health' sanit4ion' education' cultur!' recreation'

;;;il;,';; d*"1ip,,,"n', ""Lno'i" 
a"u"lop"nt' and many other fiscal' general and

administntive services.

a) FimDcirl Reportirg Model

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position and the results of

oDeralions of the Municipality as a whole' and its various govemmental funds as of and for the

ffiilH;ffi ,;;;i6. Jiirii" *"r"*iry wirh accouiting principres senemrly accepted in

the United States of America lceeP) as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting Standands

Board (GASB).

According to the financial reportins model established by GASB Statement No- Jl' Batic

Finonci{l statements - *a u"ro[".nrt .s Dl(]ussion atd Analysis - lor state and Locol

cr*"#"* icesg No. 34), the iequired basic financial sratement presentation applicable to

;;V;;"tp"itq' is composed oi rit" folto*ing elements: (l) government-wide finarcial

statements (GWFS), (z) go,ernlrlentti fund hnaicial statements-(CFFs)' (3) notes to basic

il""i"i."i".*s, ",a 
(i) required supplementary information (Rs()'

XS{ consisting of a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)' is information present€d

afong*itn, bui s"p6.at" from, Municipality's basic financial statements'

W&A is r llarl i\e report that induces the accompanying 91sic lnaicial 
statements and

Drovides an analvtical o**it" <rf l}r"iJ"i"ip"lity s fin;c;l activities for the fiscal year ended

i"X"':ili,jiz, u1*i'tn the Municipality's knowledge of the transactions' events and conditions

reflected in the basic filr*"i"r "rtt#"'it 
rrt" MD&i also highlights c€rtain key fiscal policies

that control the MuniciPality's operations'

Other supplementary information presented in this report for purPoses of additional aflalysis

consist of:
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a)

b)

COMMOTIWEALTH OI' PIJERTO RICO
MI]NICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Not€s to Basic Finaocial Slatements

Fis.el Year End€d June 30' 2012

Finarcial Reporting Model - (coatinued)

/tr.^mhininr and individ'lat non-flaior goverrunentat {irnd lmancial stslemenls' (2) budgetary

li.,1"l#i"ii,'*iiarr." 
- 

a"u*..r* r'ra. ird (l) schedules ofcrpirrt assers used in the operations

oigJu.*m"ntut n a.. as listed in tle accompanling table ofconlents

Fitrancial ReportiDg Entity

The Municipality follows the provisions of CASB Statement No 14' The Firuncial Reporting Entily

GAit il: 14; and GASB Statement No Jg' Detemi ing whetllr--c{ain-?sanizatio s aft
'io^in ri uri,, - an Amendnent o7 C)sa sta"t"nt Ni 14 (GASB No Jq) to determine its

fi nancial reporting entity.

The acrompanfng basic financial sialements include all departsnenE' agencies and municipal

;;.";;;i';i;;'", "* ,,,a". tt'" tegat at'J uatinistrative control ofthe Mavor' and whose financial

resources are rmder the legal 
"u"toay -J conttot of the Mlnicipality's Director of Finance and

' 
Budge! as prescribed bY Act No' 8l '

The Municipality's rnanagement has considered all poteotial component units (whether govemmental'

-^' .^' ^.^fir ^r nrnfitoriente-dl fo, *[;; it miy be financiatty accountable' and other legally

H##,;;;H;'i". *ii"i''i" u'"ti,alitv L not financialiv accounrable br the nature and

.idifi^,^.p ^f rheir ElationshiD ''ittr 
*e trliunicipatity rnay b€ such thal exclusion of their basic

iifl#ffi;;il #;;.;""i;; u,"i"ip"rii, *ourd Luse.rle accompanying basic rurancial

,i"i'."".?r"'.1.r*alng o, to*.plJ". a."*rihgly, a tegatly sepamte organiTation would be

;;;;;;";;;;""; un-it of the Municipalitv if all of the followins criteria are met:

The Mayor appoins a voting majoriN of an organizalion's goveming body and' either ( l) lhe

l"i*i"iil,rv 'rtl ,rt" "t ity ro i,,it*'iti *ii tn"that organization or 121 the organizalion has the

p.irilr i":p."la" ,peciht finan"iut b"ntfis to' ot iipose specific ltnancial burdens on the

MunicipalitY.

Tlteeconomiclesouces,forwhichtheMunicipalityisentitled,eitler-receivedorheldbythe
*p"*i'".gr.l^i.,.; entirely or almost entirely for the dircct benefit of the Municipality or

its constituents.

The Municipaliry's rnanagement has concluded that' based on the aforementioned criteria' there is no

entity lhat should be repo,t"a * 
"ornpon"ni 

*is ofthe Municipality for the fiscal year ended June

30,2012.

c) Goverrment-wide Finatrcid Statements

The acaompanying GWIS are composed of: (1) the slatement of net assets and (2) lhe statement of

activities. These financial statements i"*n lnfotm"tioo of all Sovernmental activities of the

Municipality as a whote m"te 
'r't"m-Jn-s "" 

aimed at preseniing a broad overview of tie

MnniciDalitv's finances uv."pot-g 
'o 

finun"iuip"sition and r€sults of opemtions using methods that

are similar to tiose used by most privale businssses'
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COMMOITWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Not€s to Basic Finatrcial Strtemenls

Fiscal Year Ended Jutre 30, 2012

c) Government_wide Financial StaterDents - (cotrtilued)

The focus ofGWIS is oII the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as^a single economic unit

unJ ,ot on "o.pli-"" 
with budgets' regulatory rcquirements or or the use of available or currently

;;";il; f;;;i;i ."*r."", 1ir".."aio * nscal accountabilitv) operational accountabilitv is the

MuniciDalitv's responsrblhty to report to the extent to which it has met its operating objectives

;ffi:i;;il'il "6;;;;"-.rr 
,'irg'ar resouces available for that purpose lt focuses on the

Narri"ipiriq';. p.i"dp"l operating objective, which is to provide services 1o its citizens'

Statement ofNet Assets

Tffi;-p*ylrg t""ment of net assets provides short-term. and lonS{erm information about the

f"i..J,p"fi v .'fr"*i"l position by presenting all ofthe Municipality'sassets and liabilities' with the

lidr",i* L*""" these two itemi ,"pon"i * "n., asses" (equity) and or net liabilities. This

.,.,"."ri *.i,o management ln *stl'ing the level of services that can be provided by th€

MuniciDalih in the future and ils abilrf o ieet is obligarions as [rey become due' ln addition' this

#il:'r?;;';;;;"" i" *r'i'r' ir'" r"r*icipalitv-iras invested in capital ass€ls and discloses

legal aod contracfual resfictions on resources'

Net assets are classified in the accompanying statement of net assets within the following three

categories:

Inyested in cspilal s$ets' net of Eleted debt - This net asset caiegory consists of capital

^-.il, 
,"i.f *i.*"f".A i"p,""iutJn u'a utonization' reduced by the outstanding balanc€s of

i-i. p"v"-uli *". p"vable and ;ther debts that are attributed to the acquisition' consfuction or

improvement ot' lhose assets r""piot'ttt"tta debt) For the purposes of determining the

outstanding debt attributeo to 
"apitli 

asses, the totai long{erm debt related to the acquisition'

;;;;;;il" ;. improvemenl tr-l"pit"r *t"tt has been reduced by any related unspent debt

proceeds and any related unamortiTEd debt issuance costs'

In addition, for the purposes of determining the outstanding deb! attributed to capital assets' the

fL*;g it In. -.'"*.lud.d fiom the caliulation: (l) intere( payable' (2) accrued'ulerest on

d.eep oi.?"*, a"u, nna non-*pitur-ol'J fiabiliti; (eg *Tp".n*q absences' claims and

itJir"""t", "rc.f' 
ana 1:1 aeui "J-io 

n"** c pirat- ocqoiiltions .by 
parties outside the

Municipality. Furtlrermore, tre coifutation ofo"t astets inue"t"d in capital assets' net of r€lated

deb! eicludes inter-fund loans and other hnancial assets'

Restricted net assets - This net asset category consists of net rcsouc€s resticted by extemal

parties (such * a"ur -'"'o''s, tJilot* ilt*' codnbulors' laws or regulations of orher

povemments. etc.), or n"r *..o tir. 
"rrti.rr "oir.*ints 

are inposed by constitutional provisions or

H;iil;U;i;;;; ;;il"gl"gi'l;tio; **io' or legislation that authorizes the Municipalirv

to assess, lery, charge or ottr"t''ist mana"t" paymenr of resources (from extemal rcsorrce

oroviders). Enabling leSislalion establishes

'*]J"".ti. ,r ri -"i ia* ?i"garv 
""rorceau" 

t"quirement that those resourc€s be used onlv for

the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation'
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COMMONWEALTE OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Strt€rEents

Fiscal Year Etrded June 30' 2012

c) Govemment-wide tridancial Strtements - (contitrued)

The classihcation of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received or eamed by

,'lr" l'irri"lp"irry Wift all explicit understanding between the Municipality and the resource

..""ia"o ,irn th" .".ou."., woukl be used foi specific purposes. G.ants, contributions and

i;;;; ;'"il;, ;1,; under those kinds of conditions' Bond indentures also often limit the

use ofbond proceeds to specihc purposes'

lntemally imPosed desiSlations of resources, incluiling earmarking' are not reported as resficted net

a"*". flt"* i*igrra,f""rs consist of management's plins for the r'rse of resources' which arc subject

to change at the discretion ofthe Municipal l'egislaturc'

The Municipelity has rcporte-d the following types of reshicted net ass€ts in the aclompanying

statement of net assets as of June 30' 20 I 2:

(l) Dcbt service _ +epres€nt net resources available to cover future debt s€rvice Bayments of

bonds PaYable.

(2) Other purposes - Represent net resouces available fiom certain federal and state grants'

' - 
which havtbeen s€t aside to carry out s€veml programs'

(3) Capital proiect - Represents net rcsouces available for the acquisition or construction of

major capital facilities.

Unr€stricted lret ass€ls _ Generally, this cat€gory consisrs o[ the excess of assets over related

liabilities ihat are neither 
"*te.na1y 

no. i"catty ."iricted, neither invested in capital assets. Generally,

the assets recorded within this category # disiSnated to indicate that management does not consider

,fr"ri'," i" lr"if"Uf" for general o'p"*6onri Ar."s rrported within this category often have

consEaints ttat ale imposed by management but can b€ removed or moolrleo'

When both reshicted and unrestricted resources are available for use' it is the Municipality's policy to

#irall;;"J il resourccs firsl and then urestricted resources as they are n€eded'

Statemeot of Activiries
'Ihe accompanying statement ot activities Presents the Municipaliry s results of operalions by

showing how lhe Muni.ipairy't n"r **s 
"nlnged 

during fte fiscal year ended June 30' 2012' using

a net (expense) r€venue fo,m'r' nt's iruret"ni itettns tie *sr of e""liinclion/program as well as

the exlent to whicb eacn of*t u-t"ipttif" ntctions' prognms or olier services either contributes

io or dIaws fiom the Murri"ipary'' gs'neoi te'en'res lsuih as property taxes' municipal license taxes'

construction excis€ taxes, etc )'

A function/program descdbes a group of activities that are aimed at accomptishing a-major

service or regulatory responsibili"w i'he functions/programs reported in the accompanymg

basic financial statements "*' ilict'"tr "ati'isntion' 
t2) Public.wodg (3) Health' (a)

Emergency management' <Jl ftitri'i"ip"f p"fi"t tO) SPorts and recreation (7) Sa{itation (E)

Elderly centerc (9) Housing'
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COMMONWT,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MTINICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Finadcisl Stat€ments

Fiscal Year Dnded June 30' 2012

c) GovemmeDt_wide FitraDcial Statements - (continued)

The statement ofactivities demonstmtes the degee Io which program revenues offset direct expenses

ofa given functiorVprogram or segrnents nirec?expenses are thoie that are clearly identifiable with a

qnecific function. segment or op"otio*i unit 'This statement reports revenues in two brcad

c'ategories: { 1 I program revenues and (2) general relenues'

Prosram revenues are generated direcrl) fiom a program ilselfor may come from panies oulside the

'Jfi,ijil'l,y';;r-";""; 
"t "it"*t r"irtt t""meni of activities' program revenues reduc'€ tie cosrs

(expenses) ofthe functi.,vp*gtt t uti'" 
"i: 

iitthenet cost of thehnction/profram that must be

financ€d fiom the Municipotity', g"ne*l i"u"nues or 12) the na program. revenue that contributes to

the Municiprlity's geneot *ut"t' r:it 
"t"otpanying 

statement oiaclivities repons the following

categories of Program revenues for the fiscal year ended June JU' lull:

Cherges for services - Thes€ revenues genemlly consist of exchaage or exchange'like

hansactions involving crr*g"a to 
"u.lo.",. 

oi applicads who purchase, us€ or directly beneftt

ffiffiffi;, i"-il;;;;'ii";;;;;;;t;A; are otherwise directrv.aff€ctedbv the servic.€s-

These rev€nu€s include f*t "hdJ 
i;;;p*iitc services' charges for licenses and pemits' and

fines 6nd forfeitures. among o$ers'

Progrem-specific operetiog aod capilal grants etrd cotrlributions - fhese revenues consisl of

hnsactions rhal are eidrer .-;;i;;- ;;-;"t*",) non-exchange Eansactions with other

g"t#.""L.""tg",1-rio"'. rl' i"ai'ia"uit that restrict the resources for use in a particular

[-s,-.. on"ry'q ryry3a :::SP, ji:m':l "ff "#ffi:ifi f,ffir:*":,THj'-I
flnanc€ the costs ot operahng a s

pri[. 
"r " 

tp""in"itogruit' cipitat gra'ti *d contributions consisl of.revenues or resourc€s

that are restnct€d toa 
"up't'r 

pu-[o"'_- to purchas€' consEucl or renovate capital asses

associated with a specin" p'g;'R"t"i"Ea operating and caPital grants and contibutions arc

nmsrtun revenues because lhey "r. 
ip"ciri.r j attributable to a progmm and reduce the nel

::#,U liH;;.,li; ;:# ;;[tr6 ihe] are reported net or estimated uncolrectibre

amounts.

Geneml revenues are the default cat€gory for revenues lt includes all revmues and gains that do flot

meet the definition of Prog*rn '"*niJt]p'ptny 
ta\es' municipal lic€ns€ taxe's' sales and use taxes

and construction €xcise ** "* 
*p"*J* !"'1*l revenues All other non-Ex revenues (iduding

unrestricted interest on deposits' g#;"";il;;;; not resscted for specific programs and

fliscellaneous rcvenues; that ao not ieet the defiflition of progra$ revenues arc classified as general

revenues. Resources that '* A"ai*i-i"t"-"ffy ty tf'" fU'nit-iputity at" reported as geneml revenues

rather than as progra$ revenues Aii ;;;;;;L;'"t."*.reponi net of estimatea urcollectible

;;;;;hidi#-"orded as r€duction of revenues rather than as exp€ns€s'

The Seneral Sovedunent function/program repontd in lie accompanyhg stalement of acrivilies

includes expenses lhal are rn *t""1"" r'ii*i1t msts of otirer'firnctionvprograms of the

Municipality.

Even though some of these costs have been charged to certain fimds in the GFFS as indirect cost
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COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RJCO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAI
Notes to Basic Finsncial Statements

Fiscal Ye'r Eoded Jrne 30' 2012

c) GovernrD€nt-wide Finencial Statements - (continued)

allocations pernitted under some federal programs, the Municipality has re.port€d these indirect costs

^ 
aii*i"ri..r". 

"rrrr" 
g"n"*l gor"m."nituncrion. Accordingly, rhe Municipality generally does

not allocate general government (indir€ct) costs to other functions

The effects ol all inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other financing

*,i-.""Jur", 
"*ong 

gorr"-."ntl n,naaj nurr" been removed fiom the accompanying statements of

net assets and activities.

The Municipality classifies all of its activities as governmental activities in the acaompanying GWFS'

ii"* *" i"i"i i"" genemlly financed througlitaxes' lnerqov.:nYnental 
revenues aad othet non-

"-"i*g" 
*"".t"" ,fu can be used to suppirt the-Municipality's programs or services These

- lovemirental activities are also generally reported in the GFFS'

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which.the Municipality would be

fr"rai"g .irl*"'s.g 
"et 

assets ror sfiirc individuals or other extemal parties in accordance with

trust ageements or other custodial arrangements'

al) Govemmeotal Furd Financial Statements

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting of a self-balancing set ofaccounts used to record

"..ir, 
riruiriii, 

"^a 
*.idr"t .qiirits.itfoir' or 6alances' and changes therein' \ hich are seplregated

;il:;;;ilrrtving o,',p""in" ;i'iti"s or attaining certain objectives in 
'ccordance 

with

GAaP *dlo. tp""iul r"gulations' restrictions or limitations'

The accomPanying GFFS are composed of: (l) th€ balance sheet 
--Sovemmental 

funds' (2) the

statement of revenues, expendit ... *Jchurg.. in fund balances (deficits.) - governmental funds

and (3) the statement of rcvenues 
"nJ "*pti'aitut"t - 

budget and achral - budgetary basis -
general fund.

These financial statements report the financial position and results operations.of the Municipality's

aovernmental fimds by presenling sou'""t "tt.ana 
U"f-""t of currenl financial resources Some of

,";e;;;;i;';;i;#ri 
-r,l"* 

""t,ac""'j "ientation 
and focus primarilv on: lt) the Municipalit)'s

;;:,';;;;;;;i fr,,L. ,. aer"a' tJ*' Lz) rie fiscal accouotabilirv ard (3) rie individual pafls

of tle Municipality s gor..n 
"nt 

t't*i u""o-tabiliry represents fie MuniciPality's r€sponsibility

r^ iusrito rhal its acrion, in trr" 
"urr*ii,-r"uiy""r 

have complied with public decisions conceming the

;,ffii,i.il*;;i;'oirc 'on'v' 
in rt''it'ort rerm (senersllv one fiscal vear)'

The accompanying GFFS segregate govenmental funds acaording to their intended purpose and are

used in alemonsfating **pfi-* iitit l"gnf' financial and contracttral provisions' The mhimum

number of govemmental tu"d" it '";iil;; 
;nsistent with legal and s€lf-impos€d managerial

requirernens established by fie Municipality
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COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RJCO

MIINICIPAIIIY OF COROZAI
Notes to Basic Fin{ncial Statements

Fiscat Year Ended June 30, 2012

d) Governm€ntal Fund Finatrciel Statements -(continued)

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipaliry classifies its govemmental funds within the following

categories:

Genersl fund - The geneml fund is the Municipality's main operating tund and a major

g-or_"*a"rlf frra, as difined below, used to account for all financial resources and govemmenkl

ictiuities, 
"*""pt 

fo. financial resources required to be-accounted for in another fund It is presumed

ii"i ii"-iu*iJp"ri y't govemmental acti;ities have been reported in the geneml tund except for

i*ruiion. ro. *r,i"r, oi-e ofthe following compelling reasons has required the use of another fund:

iii f"eaf ,"qui.".-t., (2) GAAP requirelients or (l) the demands of sound financial administratior

i"qriing th" u"e of u gouemmental fund other than the general fund'

Debt service fund - The debt servic€ fund is a majol govemrnental fund, as defined below, used by

rhe Municioalitv to account for the accumulation oi reiources for, and the payment of Fincipal and

i##i;;iiil'bil-[!;i. io. *r'i"l a"ut "s*i'" 
pavments are legallv mandated to be accounted

i.t l" 
" 

a*i ."*i". iuna and/or (2) bonds fayablc oi any generat long-term .debt 
for which the

il;;i;;Jt y ;;l"g ac.cumulating'financiai iesources in advance to pav principal and interest

,,.r-"ris a"*ino in firture years' Consislentl) with lhe prior fiscal yeare financial stalement

#$;;.;. il;? il"'iJ v.* "'a".a 
:'n" l-0' 2012' tht financial aqivitv accounted ror in lhe

debt servicr fund was specifically related to bonds payable

Speaial rcvenue furds - Special revenue funds are govemmental finds' as defmed b€low' used by

iti" tutuni"ipulity to 
"""ount 

for revenues derived from grants' contributions or other revenue sources

,r,"i*"-"irii"i l"rr-*."icted by the Municipality or lfually restrictet bv outside parties for use in

rp""in" pr.p*"t rft" ,"". u,,i litltution' if *"h spec_ial 
'r€venu€ 

fund are sPecified by municipal

ordinances or federal and state statutes. However, resources restricted to expenditures for purposes

;;;;iy il;;rt;. trre general trnd are reported in the Municipalitv's general fund Fovided that

"ff'.ppii*ti" 
f"g.l *quireiens are appropriately satisfied,In thisrase a special revenue fund to

^"..rirnt 
for such kind oftransactions will be used only if legally mandaled'

Capilal proiects fuods - Capilal projects firnds 8re govemmenlal fu"dt'5"d lo account for dle

niio"lur'*ror*, *"a fo. ,t. ""qriiiri-, 
*nstructi;n or improvement of major capibl tacilities

#a 
",rr".."."o. 

sigtfficant capitai ouilavs Rnanced tom pry":d" 9f 9:11:l 
oblisation' public

;;;";;;;p""T"iottigxid.' una" a"'ounted for in the capital projecs tunds'

The use of tie capital projects funds has been res€rved only for major capital acquisitions'

-""*"f....i.ptir".t *i';tbtiLi *cl"fa distort financial resources hend data if not reported

t"prtutefy m- thi ott er Municipality's opemting activities'

pmnrierqfl tr'nnds - Proorietarv funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to

;:[J,,Hi'Jiiil";:#,1;#;;;;primarirv bv u5er charses and the measutement of

finrn.irl activiN focus* on n"t ,n"oa" rn""r ment simi'iar ro the private sector. The reponing

e"ni,,, ;:il;ii;;h,;.i" *d roti't c"nt"' of cibuco as a proprietary tund
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MI'NICIPAIITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statemetrts

Fiscal Year Ended June30, 2012

d) Govertrmental Futrd Financial Statements - (cotrtinued)

The focus of the GFFS is on major got€rnmental funds, which genemlly represent the Municipality's

most important funds. Accordingly, thi Municipality is required to segregate govemmental funds between

major and non-major categoriei within the CFfs ua.lor individual govemmental funds are reported

ind"iui lrulty u. *jut r" 
"o'ir.n. 

in the GFFS, while data fiom all non-major govemmental funds are

aggregated into a single column, regardless of firnd rype

By definition, the Municipaliry's general fund is considered a major govemmental firnd for financial

*p.nirg pr.p"""a. i. 
"adition, 

*y-oth". gor"*-ental fund would be classified as a major govemmental

n 
'na 

in ih" Cffs if it" total asse;, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of that individual governmental

fund are at least l0 percent of the corresponding element total (assets, liabilities' revenues or

"-p"rJit.*l 
f"i af govemmental tunds. For the purposes of applying the aforem€ntioned maior fund

criioia, no 
"iirninntiois 

of interfxnd balanc€s have been made Total revenues for tiese purposes means

;ii ;;r;rt"t, including operating and non-opemting revenues (net of allorNances for uncollectible

"""orntrl, 
o".pt foi otie. i.uacing sources. Total expenditures for these- purposes mean all

"*p"naituies, 
in"tuaing operating and non-operaiing expenditures, except for other financing uses'

Based on the aforementioneal criteria, tle Municipality's major govemmental funds rePorted in the

**rnp-ying cffS are: (1) the general tun4 (2) lhe debt service fun4 (3) the capital improvements

fund, and (4) joint resolutions fund.

The Municipality periodically undertakes a comprehensive evaluation of its fund strucrure to ensue that

".r-oti", 
*itt uit asp""ts that are of importance to users of geneml purpose extemal financial rcports'

l""l"or"",iy, ,ii"rp"nuous tunds and iome intemal tunds currently used by Municipality in the day-to-

;; ;;;;;-;rres have not been reported as irdividual govemmental tunds in the accompanving

firnd fi nancial statements.

The accompanying GFFS are accompanie-d by the following. schedules required. by GAAP: (1) the

."*r"ii;"ii" it ii" l"t*"" sheet - govemmental tunds to the statement of net assets' and (2) the

reconciliation of the statement of nevenues, exp€nditures and changes in fund balances - governmental

funds to the statement of activities.

e) Meesurcmetrt Focus .nd Basis of Accoutrting

covemmeol-widef[atrcielstatemelrB-TheacrompanyingGwFsarepreparedusing$e
economic resources measur€ment locus;d lhe accrual basis of accountins Subject lo lhe additional

-i""-*a ii-io,i.". detailed b€low, revenues (including interest on deposits and investments) are

""..Jir."*,aea 
when earned and expenses are generally rerorded when a liability is incurred'

-regard 
less of the liming of relaled cash flo*s'

AII revenues, expenses, gains losses, assets 6nd liabilities resulting fiom exchange and exchange-like

;;;;il;;;-e";Jl"y recorded when the excharge takes place ln exchange transactions' each

,rr.* a ,ft" t 
"r*"tion 

.oeives and gives up essentially equal vitues nn exchangelike transaction is

:ilil .^il;;;;;i;; ia"",inrult-*"ie. -d Lhe vatues exchanged. rhouBh relared- may not be

quite equal. Nevertheless,
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Notes to B{sic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Etrded June 30, 2012

e) Measurement Focus atrd Besis of Accounting - (continued)

the exchange characteristics ofthe exchange-like transaction are-stl.ong enough to justit treating it as

* "*"h-i" for accounting purposes (ex"amples include fees for licenses and permits' charges for

services, and miscellan"ou, a"r"nu"a, *hi"h'ut" recorded as revenues when collected because they

arc generally not measumble until actually re'€ived)'

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are

r"".iiJ rr-i"L af,Ja"riala forth by GASB Statement No' J-i' '4ccounting o1d Ftuancial Reporting

tot Non-exclanpe frdrlaclrot?s (CASB No JJl' GASB No ll established accounling and repoding

'.lr,,,;J;i;;';;;il*g" t -*.riont involving cash and financial or capital resources (for

.y,mnle most taxes- smnts and private donations)"In a non-exchange transaction' the Municipality

;il:"H ,"J;;;ffi;;ril iii""ttv 
'"""i'lng 1o' givins) e4ual value in retum' This is different

ffi;'.iii;;; *rr*,i"". i, which each pa'ty reieivei and gives up essentially equal values.

a.."Ji"ai" Ciss 1t1.. ll. fie Municipality grouis its non-exchange transactions into the following
'r.* 

"-r",i. 
rr",h.-""*.p*ving u"iJ i'ni'iial itatemens: {a) de;ived-ra'\ revenues' (b) imPosed

non-"r"h;ng" ."r"nu"a, (c) govemment mandated non-exchange transactions' and (d) voluntary non-

exchange hansactions.

ln the case of imposed non_€xchange revenue transactions (such as prop€rty ta)'es and municipal licens€

il:i,fi; ilft ;;. ".*"..it' -ua" tv the Municipalitv on 
.non-govemmental 

entities' including

individuals, other than as.".r."nts on e*"haig" transactions' ;eceivables are genemlly recorded in the

iliffihi;;;f*:*urc't.g"t .t,i, tt"' ui"n' e'op"'tv taxes and municipal lic€nse are senemllv

recorded as revenues (net ol amoun$ considered not collectible) in the fiscal year when nesourc€s ale

;;1;;;;;J;; ;; fi.st fiscal vear that the use of the resources is permitted'

Govemment-mandated non_€xchange tmnsactions (such as grants and contributions) result when a

;"rJ;;;i;;; [r.l(suct as rhe federal oi 
'tu'" 

go"t,nt-nt1 pt'ides r€5ources to the Municipalitv

::';:;;;. o^,"mmenr reouires rhe Municipalitl lo use rhose resources lor a specific purpose or

:1"-H.':"#;:t%'il'il';;;;il;;:; ;;i'8 t'gist"iion r'' *"'" r}pe or transactions' receivables and

i"l]ii',i. #i."Jry.Jor'a"a '"n.n "tt "iiniiititi 
requiremens imposed bv tte provider have b€en met'

;;#;;;"?;; ilil, ir'" u""i"ip"iiti '"i exDend resources on the specific pupose or Foject

beforr lhe provider reimbuses any "il;i". R;;.r;: is. rherefore. generatly recognized as q*lirying

reimbursable expenditures are inculr€d'

Voluntarv flon_€xchange fansactions (such as donations and certain grants and entitlemetrts) resutt from

1".fiffi'. il;;""1 ufr.."o. ",t".,rr- "*.tr*eer. ";ttirgty 
inlered into by t\ro or more panies

;ffi; il#;;;; Livables and revenues irc generallv acco,nred for in rhe sane manner as

sovemmeot-mandated nor**"f'-g" ttun*"tions discusseJ above Events that ale neither exchatrge nor

il:lilil;ffi;r",t "* 
t*""a"4 *i"" ii is probable that a loss has been incurr€d atrd ihe amount

of loss is rcasonably estimable.

Receipts of any t ?e of revenue sources collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year are

recorded as uneamed ldefercd) revenues
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Fiscal Year Etrded Jure 30' 2012

e) Measuremeni Focus anal Basis of Accounting - (contiDued)

According to GASB No. 34, all general caDital assets and the un'matured lonS-term liabilities arQ

recorded only in the accompanying statemen't of net assets' The measurement focus and the basis of

accountins used in $e accompanying U\4 tS dilTer significanlly fiom lhe measuremenl focus and basis of

;ffiilil:;;"i";;'p*pl*i]."""r ,r'" accompa-nving cFts rherefore' rhe accompanvins cll s
iiii,iJ" 

".1"i,'"ir"*, '""-J*ii"a i, 
'ht "tto'punving 

."ble of contenrs' ro bener identiry fie

relationship b€tw€€n the GWFS and the GFFS'

Govemmental futrd lioatrcial statcmeoE - rhe accompanying cFl-s are reponed using the cunent

financial resources measuremenl locus (ttlu of c,rrenl lurancial resources) a'nd the modified accrual

basis of accounting. Accordingly, the accompanying statem€nt of revenues' expendihfes and changes in

ffi; il;;t ;"t;.n-entil'tundt, t"porl 
"'han!ts 

in tt'" utnount of financial resources available in

,f," ,",. fr,r* 
", 

_" 
."rult of tmnsactions and eventi of the fiscal year reported Therefore' revenues are

"t -"fft 
."""""ti^a 

"" 
soon as they are both measurable and available Revenu€s are considered to be

:;;i;;[ ;# thev are mllectibl; \ idin the cunenl fiscal year or soon enough thereafler to pay

i;i,,ffi. ;ffi il; n..ui v.u.. no'ttti' putpose' the Municipalitv Seneiallv considers most revenues

(municiDal licenses tuxes, consmrciton ;';" ;"t' sales 
_and 

use taxes' interests on deposit'

li]iJllirHmeitai;;, -a "",oiu"ti"* -J""'tuin "h*g"t 
rot t"rvices) to be.available if collected

within 90 daYs after June 30, 2OtZ, exceptioiproperty taxes-for which th€ availability period is 60-days'

il?;#.il,l ,;;;;;ir,g ,i,i' ""1''lll'v 
l'it!'io'n o' cott.cr"a in advance are recorded as deferred

revenues at Jun€ 30,2012.

The principal revenue sources considered susceplible to accrual include prop€O laxes municipal license

Eres, intergovemmental grants and conr'lutio'ns inreresr on deposis' and cerrain charges lor services'

These principal revenue sources *""r rcltf' ln"*tr*tiiitv and availability criteria in the accompanying

GFFS, excepi for amounts recorded as deferred revenues'

lnamannersimilaltotheGwFs,butsubiecttoandlimitedbyfieavailabilitycriteriadiscussedabove,
all revenues, expenses, gains, rot'"t, ^Jtt 

unaliutilities resutting fiom exchange and exchangelike

transactions are also genelatty t"toa"a ''ii il" ex"t'ang" tutes ptai" e"*taingly' fers for licenses and

n€.mits. charqes for senices -d tit"J;;;; 
-;;;;es 

are recorcled as r€venues vrhen collected

il.rra. tf,., 
"'* 

g*"all) not measurable until actually rer'eived

All revenues, expenset- gains. loss€s and assets resulting fiom non<xchange transaclions are recorded in

a similar mamer to lhe GwrS- uring trt. fr.iiusty alsiustt; 
"tiretiu 

s"t fonh by GASB No 33 for non-

IJJ'n_t"'#";:*rr. trt."rlo,," -a i-i,Jli the availatitity criteria discussed abore. Accordingly.

property tax alld municip"t t,"tn"t u". 
'""t_itut,_l; 

are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when an

enforceable legat claim rt" 
"ttt"" 

*nt'" ptpitty r'* una ti'ni"ipal tic"ose t'u r€venues (net of:unounls

crnsidercd not collectibt"l * utto g"n"ii'#J"a i" *'" rtttat ytat t*hm resources arc requircd to be

used for the first frscal year that the ll* Cl'f ti" t"i""*t is permtred Receivables and revenues fiom

fedeml and state grants ana *nt iuutionr, ionli-io* andentitlemens are also generally rc.orded when all

elisibility re4uirements imposen by ,h" ;;il;;;" ;;; met (generally, as quali&ing reimbursable

"*i""ai,ir*. 
r." it.rr*d for expendituredriven grants)

lnterests on deposits are rccorded when eamed since these revenues are considered both measumble and
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MI'IUCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Finelcial Stetements

Fiscsl Year EDded June 30, 2012

e) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accoutrtiag - (contitrued)

available at June 10, 2012.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Interpr€tration No' 6, .Recognition .and^Meos-urement 
of Cerlain

t-iitiliti"s ond t p"rdit*"" in Govemmentol Fund Financial Statenents \CASRI No 6)' in the abseoce
-.i-'-"-rpli"ii 

"iqti*-ent 
(i.e., lhe absence of an applicable modification' discxssed below) the

Uunicipaiity geneially accrues a govemmental fi$d Iiability and expenditure. (including salaries'

"-i"*i"n"i ..iri"".. tupplies. utilid;s, etc.) in the period in which the govemment incurs the liability' to

ir." "*"i ,i" irt"* irruitlii.. ,r" no*ttv 
"*p€cled 

to be tiquidated in a timely manner and in tull widr

"r."ri^""rif*f" 
financial resources. casdr no.6 modified rhe recognition cnteria for certain

"r"."ai*."" una liabilities reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting prior to GASB No'

;;:-;il-;;iil ; nurnuer'ot situations in which the Municipality should distinguish between

g"r"--"rl"f irra fiJiiiies and general long-term liabilities Therefore' theaccom-panying balance sheet

'- o.u.mmental flrnds qenerallv reflecs oniy assets lhat will be converted into cash to satisfo current

rirfri,i"tl h"e-,;-*'.Jt -l tto,. ^tts 
thal will nor be convened into cash lo salisry cunenl

ffitil;;;;ffi;iy ,, accounted for in the accompanying balance slieet - gov€mmental tunds At

tfr"- s"." ti."l tong-tirm liabilities (gen€rally, those un-matuied that will not require the use of curent

i*-"iui ,""or.""r- to pay them) are not'accounted for in the accompanying balance shert -
govemmental funds.

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting in accordaace with GASB No' 6 include:

Princioal and inter€st on bonds payab|e are recorded when they mafure (when payment is due),

:i;ft.,.#i;;i;; i",..*iJi6"'a' a* 
"n 

Julv l' 2012' which are recorded as solernmenhl

;1il'lt;;i'tH;,;;;d )tiii*t'i"r' i' 
'r'" 

a"'" oh"n "*"""' '"'" available in Ihe debr ser'"ice

tund.

Certain accounts payable intergovernmental payabtes *9. "t:t T:ruF- liabiliries not due and

n,!,hle lun-matured) or not normally expected to be liquidatei in full and in a timely mamer

l,i''fi'"rt"o,J -i .^"rlii. fi;;;i; ;**""l *e recorded in the a*ompanving stalement or

,"i*""". Sr"t fi"Uifi,ies are recoriled in the govemmental funds whm they mature'

Executory purchase orders and contracts are recorded as a resenation offund balance in the GFFS'

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net lmancial resources (expenditurcs) rather

iLan ryMn<.e Mdst exnenilitues ,." ."*u*ur" and are recoraled when the related govemllerlal

;ffi ;:r,iii'i; iH;J:ffi;;i;; .;ch as depreciarion and amorrization are recorded in the

;:"il;;;;;;;;, oi""tiuiti". uut "" 
not re@rded in $e accompanving cFFs'

f) Stewardship, CompliaDce.nd Accountrbility

Budsetarv Control

TheMavoranditsAdminisrativecabinetPrepareaonualbudgetseachflscalye&forthe
ii,",,i'iii,lni,,l ii""i iiio *a-Jr, **i* r,,,i. sirch lega y adopted budsets are based on exp€cted



COMMOI\WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUMCIPAIITY OF COROZAI
Notes to Basic Finrncial Statements

Fiscal Yetr Ended June 30, 2012

Ste{{rdship, Complirnc€.trd Accoutrtrbitity - (continued)

exoenditures bv prograrn and eslimated resources by source' Thq annual budgels are-developed using

"i,#;;;;k;;";;-based 
p.ogran budgeting and zero-based budsetinS' and include e'limates of

;;;;;; il;,#;";u."". roi tt i.nruing ttcai vear under laws and regulations existing at the time

the budgets are Prepared.

TheMavormustsubmilforrhe6scalyearcommencingonthenextJulyl,anannualbudgekry
*."t.*i,t ,-*i itl'e p."iect) to the commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the commonwealth (the

#il;iJ;;;iil;; lirni.ipar r"egisut"'" no later than Mav l0 and Mav 15' rcspectivelv The

i...i..i"r"l p"fmf"ary verifies tf,at the Project complie-s with all, the apPlicahle laws and

;;il;;; ; ;t;;;viie comments and suggesiions to the Mavor on or before June I3.

The Municioal lxsislature has l0 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to discuss

i; 
.,.".;:-tt."J"P;i;l-*ltt' 

.oaln"u,lon.' :rhe Municipal L€gislature mav amend the budgets

ffi,,iffi; ,rt" ivi"i.t'uri"r"v;gt intt""" -" items s; far to cause a deficit without imposing

i*".'.i a";r"m.J J,rrer sou;s of revenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal l,egislature

il"air[, *Jp,lrifi;r*ily approves rhe ProjecL lhe modified Project is sent back lo oe Mavor for his

,r*"r"1 
",-,,]i""i"" 

*irtrin'i aays ttre Uayor may decrease or eliminate any line item bul may not

ttlffi;; ;il ";, 
new line itern in the iuagers' The Mayor may 

-also 
relo the budgeE in their

;;;;."o, ;;;;;l;the Municipal tegislature-with his objections lfthe Mavor reje'ts the Proje!!

ir" itrin-prr L-egislarure witl hav; up rc 8 days lo adopt or reject the recommendations or obieclions

"i 
fr" utl,. it ! upp.u"a e.oj."r ii ttni ugain to tttt t"t"yot' uhich then would have J days lo sign

and approve it.

If the budsets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines r€fened to above' the annual budgets

;ililHiliig;ffv"L' *'"ppt"'J uv tr'" L€gislature an4 thelvlavor' are automaticallv renewed

i", ii . Ltr,"- i.*rl"* ,,rit tirt r',t'nitipai Legislature and ihe Mayor approve new budgers This

;"#..i, ;ffN;"r;il;iiry-ro conrinue doinipavmints for is opemtions and other purposes until $e

new budgets are aPproved

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end

;;;;;#".;;J;.t-iictuae anv aaaitlonat information re4uested.bv the Municipal t-€sislature'

The Mayor may reque"t ,uu,"qo"nt -""it"ntt to the approved budges' which are subject to the

approval of the Municipal l.e8islatuie'

The Municipality s Depafiflenl of Ftnanc€ has the responsibility lo ensure.thal budgekry spending

...".iL'*lr|ain.a. io. a"y-ton"y .*og.ment control purpose^s. e\pendihues_plus encumbmnces

;;;;;;;'#il;""d #.*o o:t tt'""*"p"ai**tvpe ievel or eacli cost.center (activitv within a

;ff;;;ffi;ii;;r. The Mavor ,n"v't'",,r"' ,nincumbered appropriations. with in Proerams

#f,#.orif'*; fr^r"i"ipuf f."gli.rr." iru, transfer amounts among programs within and among

funds.

The t€gal level of budgetary control (i e, the level at which expenditures may 
-not 

legally exc€ed

"pp-p"J".riit 
J, ot" 6n"tion./progta*ieJ *ithin the general and debt servic€ tunds' respectively'
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MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Besic Fidatrcial Statemcnts

Fiscal Ye{r Eoded JuDe 30' 2012

0 StewardshiP, Compliarce snd Accountability - (continued)

UnderthelawsandregulationsoftheCommonwealththeapFopriationsmadefoJanyfiscalyearshall
#;il;;;;;i-i;,", i*r'ai"e 

"'"-iilui' '"'pl"' "ui,n"t"a 
for said fiscal vear unless the

irp".iii"t .i ** *rr.ient to cover said appropriations is provided'

Budqetary Accountins

The Municipality's alnual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of accounting'

which is not in accordanc€ with GAAP'

According to the budgetary basis otaccountiog' revenue is genemlly recorded when cash is received'

short{erm and long-term borrowurgs rn-al L"i'""a ro f'n*L budgeLary exc€ss of expenditures over

Tle Municipalig uses encumbmnce accounting to r€cord the fuIl-amoult of purahase orders' contracts

and other commitments of npp.op.lutaiJ.oirL, as Jeductions fiom the appropriation prior to aitual

:;;;;; ;;;;;;.--'nt'i n,,na'"Jn"imi-rarce acco'rnting is a sisnificanr aspect of budsetary

control. Accordingly. e*p.'aitu'"' utt g"-nJoify tt"o'a"d 
'*h"n 

-t}t" t"l'red expendirure is incurred or

encumbered. Available upptoptl"tio* oiiJlo"'irntrarr""s art estabtished to lapse one fiscal year after

the end ofthe fiscal y€r. e.o*t.."qr-iJio sente claims and judgments against the Municipality'

and certain other liabilities, are not reci-gl-i 
- 

"tli 
tt"y "tt "ntu't"red 

or otherwis€ processed for

ilr.;;;" il;;;;;a opp'o6utiiit 
--a 

"n""u'n"" 
lapse at fiscal vear-end other

ffll#i;."*"iiiii]r 
-tpili 

ri.oi*it 
-"ppi"p'i"tion'' 

a'" continuing acmunts ror which the

Municipal trgislature has autfronzel tnat ulipeit balance liom the prior year be caried forward and

made available for current spending'

The accompanying statement ol'nevenues and expenditures - budgel and actual - budgeEry basis -

;il#iilffi.,il; iril*uii.n "u"i 
tr'" e"n"Lt n"a'' -iginut u'dset' its anendments' and the

acrual results ofoperation. ol "tr' 
go'"-m"n"ui fund under th;budSetary basis of accounting for tie

frscal year ended June 30, 2012'

g) Deposits atrd Itrve.t ents

Under Puerto Rico statutes, public tunds deposited ir commercial banks musi b€ fully collateralized

for the amount deposited in o""t' of ii"tf depository insurance A-ll.s€cu ties pledged as

collateral ale held by th€ S""'"t"'y ;';; Treasury' of Puerto Rico tn. additi-on' tle Municipality

maintaim aeposits .'ritt the Govemmeni Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB)'

The MuniciPality's bark bal'nces in cornmercial baaks of $743'466 in the general fund were fully

collateraliz€d at June 30. 2012. ; th. ;;* govemmental tunds ther€ were deposils \Yilh

commercial banks of $+:s,8+s in loin-t Resolutionsiunds' $646'860 and in Capital Project Funds

$7,544. that were tully collaremlizEd'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PIIERTO RICO
MTII\UCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Fitratrcial Statemetrts

Fiscal Year Ended June 3O 2012

Deposits and Inyestmetrts - (continued)

The deposits at CDB of $7,505,850, restricted for capital projects' joint resolutions' other

g.;"#*"f funds, and for debt service, are unsecured and uncollateralize4 as no collateral is

rcquircd to be carried by govemmental bank'

Investments represents cenificate ofdeposits in the following institutions:

Banco Popular de P.R. $2,400,000

Acconnts Receivrble

Receivables consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2012. Thes€ accounts

,"*ir.ti", "* 
,"t"a .et of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined

l^"a ;p., past colleation experience, historical trends, current economic conditions and the

[.iJl"'"gin! or"""ounts receivable.

Activities among govemmental funds that ale representative of lending'torrowing arangements

out.t naing 
"t 

th; Ina of the fiscal year are referred to as eitler "due tc/froft other fiods" (i e the

"r.-"li 
p.il." 

"i 
ir".-fund loans) or *advances to/fiom olher funds- (i'e the non-current portion of

int".-n ia fo-.), * 
"pplicable. 

All other outstanding balances between funds are repo ed as "due

rolfmm other funds"

Us€ of EstiDates

The prepamtion of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires

.*ig"l";ti. .nt" .ignificant ;sti;ates and assumptions that affect tle r€ported.amounts of assets

-a-li"tiiiti"", the disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic lmaocial

Ji"a"nt", *a tlr" ."po*A arnounts oi revenue and exp€nses during the reporting Period' Acfual

resuls could differ from those estimates-

Itrter-fltrd Activities

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal a,ld non-reciprocal inter-fifrd activities

recorde-d among govemmertal funds in the accompanying GFFS:

Inter-fund toans - Repr€s€nt arnounts provided with a requirement for repaymen! which are

;-;.d;;"dr" fromi'in th" lender govemmmtal frlnd and -due- to" in the borrower

sovemme al fund. lnte.-find receivablei, which are flot crnsidercd to be curently available

?;;tJ;;;;; reported as advances For amounts trot expected to be collected within a

tdi"tf" #J "f 
,m", inter-fund receivables/payables are reduced to the estimated rcalizable

value and the amount that is not exp€cted to be repaid is reported as an opemtiry traNfer from

the govemmental fimd that made the lmn'

Itrter-futrd transfeE - Repres€nt flows ofassets (permanent reallocation of financial resources

h)
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RJCO

MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Y€ar Etrded June 30, 2012

i) Inter-fund ActiYities- (continued)

arnong govemmental funds) without

requirement for rePayment.

DesariptioB
Buildings
Infrastructure
Building and site improvements

equivalent flows of assets in retum a4d without a

Operating tansfers are reported as other financing sources in the governmental fund making

trinsfen-and as other finaniing sources in the governmental fund receiving transfers'

Itrter-futrd reimbursements - Represent repayments fiom the govemmental fund responsible

for particular expenditures or expenses lo the govemmental fund that initially paid for them'

ln the GFFS, inter-fund activiry has not been eliminated, as Permifted by GAAP'

k) C{pital Assets

Capital assets used in govemmental activities include land and land improvements' buildings'

strictures and building inprovements, machinery and eiuipment' fumiture.and fixtures' vehicles'

*.r*"ti.. in p.ogi"r, and infiastructure These assets ar€ capitalized and reported in the

a""omp*ying staterient of net assets. lnfrastructure assets are genemlly stationary in nature and

in"ruai ,oia.]taag"", .heets and sidewalks, drainage systems and othel similar assets'

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines-capital assets as assets with an individual

"." 
oiijoo oi.*"-.i the date of acquisition, ;onsuuction or improvemenl and with useful lives

"x"nJtg 
t"v-a one year. All ass€tt wirh individual costs under $500 or with useful lives not

;;;;G;;: A, "."'charged 
directly to expense in the govemm€nt-wide statement of activities ln

ii" g.r;;.".;r ru"a", au ;pital assets are recorded as capitaloutlays (expenditures)'

In the statement of net assets, all capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if
u";l 

"o"t 
*", unuu"ilable, except for donated capital assets' wtich-are reaorded at their estimated

iui, ,utu" 
"t 

tt" a"t" of donation. 
_Estimated 

historiial costs based on deflated current msts were used

i"'r"ft" 
" 
.fgaf.* p.rtion ofthe inliastructue constructed or acquired prior to June 30' 2002 and

c€rtain lands, buildings, stluctures and building impmvements'

Mrior outlavs for capital assets and improvemenu arf capitalized in the statement of nel assets as

iliil;;iliiJ r:tt" .otts or no*ut maintmance and repain lhat do nol add value to the

ass;t or materiall) extend capiralasset lives are not caPitalized'

Depreciation and amortization exp€nse is recorded or y in the g9v-em:neT-wide statement of

"",luiti"". 
Uo*"r"., there is no depreciation or amortization recorded for lald- and mnsffuction in

nrosress. Deoreciable capital asses are_lenerally depreciared or amonized over their estimated useful

ii_r"iuna., rt 
".rrigftt_line 

method The estimaled usefiil lives ofmajor capital assel categones are:

Ye-ers
50
l0
25
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COMMONWf,AITH OF PL'ERTO RICO
MIII\UCIPALITY OF COROZAI
Notes to Basic Fioencial Statements

Fiscal YearEnded June 30' 2012

k) Capital Assets - (continued)

Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

l0
7

tmDaired caDital assels that will no longer te used by the Municipality, ifany, are reported at the lower of

;fii;;;;;, f;"utu" trpri...n't tott", on capital assets wilh physical damages that will continue

to u"e Ga by ttre uunicipality are measured using tire restoration cost approach tmpairments of capital

assets that aie subject to a change in the manner or dumtion of use, or assets affe€ted by eflactrnent or

;;;;";i;il"*t;. regulationsL other chaages in environmental facton or assets that arc subject to

iJJr,rrorogi*t 
"t -g"t ;. obsolescence, ifany, arc measurcd using the service units approach'

l) Deferred Revenu€s

In the GFFS, deferred revenue a s€s when one ofthe following situations occur:

The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (uneamed revenue)'

In subsequent peiiods, ,rhen the revenue recognition criterion is me! the liabiliry for deferred

revenue is removed and revenue is rccognized'

Deferredrevenuesatthegovemment-widelevelariseonlywhentheMunicipalityreceivesresources
before it has a legal claim to them.

m) Compensated Absences

Compensated abs€nces are accounted for under the provisions of Statem€nt No' 16' '-'ccounting for
iriiiiii"a n**", issued by GASB (GASB No 16)- Compensated abserces include Paid time

off ;ade available to employeej in connection with vacation, sick leave and comp€nsatory time' The

liability for compensatedabiences recorded in the accompanyiflg statement ofnet Lssets is limited to

f"*" itot, 1f; is attributable to services already rendered on or b€fore June 30' 2012 ard (2) is not

"-ting*t 
i i" .p""in" event that is outside th; conhol ofthe Municipality' afld the employee (such

". 
iifnitO. Co.p"o,ut"d absenc€s that relate to future sewices or are contingent on a specific event

ousla" tft" 
"ont 

of of the employer or the employee arc accounted for in the period when those

s€rvices are rendered or those events take place.

The liability for compensat€d absences ircludes salary-related costs' which are dircctly and

incrementaliy related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer's share of

Social S€curity taxes and Medicare taxes).

The vacation policy ofthe Mulicipality provides for the accumulation o[ regular vacations al a mte of

i.s d"y, p".'.onit (30 days pei year) per employer' Enployees accumulate regular sick leave at

u *t" lf ts aty. p.. -ontl, iti a.y. p.. y"atl Em;loyees ac'umulate compensatory time at a mte of

i .5 ti.", the o*rtim" *orked. All vacation and siik leave days accumulated by employees in excess

oi:o a.ys *a eO a.y., respectively, are paid to emptoyees each y€ar' it not consumed' as required

;; l;*. il,i; ;" 
"i;mpensatory 

time,'the excess oi240 hours is paid to employees each year' if
not consumed. .
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COMMOIT{WEALTH OF PTMRTO RICO
MIIIICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Bxsic Financial Stat€ments

Fiscal Year Ended June30' 2012

Compensated Abselces (coatinued)

linon termination of emptolmenL an employee receives compensalion for all accumulated unpaid

;:;;;;;;i;;i;";liJ"u*n, ra'". r" rr'" 
'ase 

of regular sick leare irthe emplovee terminares

;::"":#;;;;;,;"ior" i.a"tting to ve"tt of services, such reg.lar sick leave is.not paid to the

..i"r*.'ii'""i ".".rr"a 
ln addiiion upon termination of employment- an employee d(xs l]ot

;;:;;;;;;;;;;;; f- compensatorv time' ifnor consumed previousl, After.l0 vears ofservices'

;;fi;;;i-[;;; ;dance h paid io ttre emplovee Accumulated vacation time is tullv vested to

the employee at any time.

The liability for compensated absences is reported in the statement of net ass€ts A liability for

;;;;;A ;*ncr! is reported in the cFis onlv when matured (when pavment is due)' for

example. as a resutt ofemployee resignalions or retirements'

Irtrg-term Debt

The long term liatilities reported in the accompanying statements,of net asses include the

rtirri"ipiri y't bonds payable, notes payable, accrueJ compensated absenc€s' and accrued legal

claims and j udgmerts if any.

All long-term debt to be repaid from Sovemmental resources is '"ry"q T liabilities in the

,.io.rin"in" ,o,.rn"nt ofnet assets Priicipal and inlerest paymens on bonds du€ on July l' 2012

ar" ."co.d""d L gor"-.enial lund liabilities in lhe G;FS (debt service fund) when resources are

"r"ifuii" 
in ,ft" 

"a"U, ."rvice funds (June 30, 2012) tn the GFFS' the face amount of debt issued

(gross debt reported) is rcported as other financing sowces when issued'

o) Openting Leases

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under seveEl operating

f"*" "G*( 
*r,i"f, genelatty have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed for

m" ,#" t".... i"ntul eipenditures recorded in the general filrrd and in other govemmental funds

io. tl" y*, 
".a.a 

l"* 30, 20t2, amountea to $100,7?5 Managemeot believes thal the summary

oi*," drtu." rninLuln ."ntol commitnents under non cancelable real property and equipment lease

with terms exceeding oDe year is not significanl_

p) Accotrtrting for Pension Costs end Poat-Employnrelt B€lefits

The MuniciDaliw accounts for pension costs fiom the standpoint of a palticipant in a multiple_

#il;il#.-;ffi;lir,. a'i"'ar"erv' pension cosrs recognized in the ac'ompanvins basic

finrncial stalements are equat to tle sta-iiorily required mntribirtions' with a liability recorded for

any urpaid required contributions.

The govemment of the Commonwealth of Pueno fuco is considered to t'e the sponsor of the

i--li.*' n".i*-.nt Svstem of the Govemment of Puerto fuco and its Instumentalities (ERS) and

;J#ffiro. ;ilil;p'i.v* 
""tt-trt",i"e 

defined benefit pension. plan and a hvbrid defined

J"niur,i"" pf-. ..potively. in which the employees ofthe Vunicipality Panicipate'

n)
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COMMONWEAI,TH OF PUERTO RJCO

M1JMCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Besic Financiel Statements

Fiscal Year [nded June 3O 2012

Accounting for Pension Costs and Post_f,Bployment Benefits - (cotrtinued)

Tle MuniciDalit\ is con!idered a panicipanL and nol a sponsor' oflhese retiremenl sysrems since fie

;;:";;':ffi] "-lcir-t, 
i"'trt" a'forementioned p€nsion trusl tunds a-re employees of the

l.'.r.i"*i"iir, "ipr"n" 
Rico and the basic financial statements of such retirement systems are part

oithe financial reporting entity ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico'

Risk Managemetrt

The Municipality canies commercial insurance covering casualty' theft' tort claims.and other losses'

;;.;;dl#t; 
";gotiated 

by the Commonwealth;s Department of Treasury (the Deparhnent of

i*"**,'on behalf of;U municipaliries of puerto Rico. The Department of Treasury pays the

,;;;# ;;;;"; u"iiuiioi tr'i Tauni"ip"litv and rhen is reimbursed each vear throush monthlv

;;i;;;;;; &;:"J i..,t" vunicipatirv's sross propero tax collecrions made bv the

il;;i";; R;r;" collection center ("cRdd",'bv 
'.".t!9i'^'n.*'".rT'1 .: 

co::lmental entitv

;;;;;;il;;illl;g"nJ collecting propertv taxes on behalf of all municipalities of Puerto Rico'

The MuniciDalitv carries insurance covemge for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile

;:td;;;-il; ;;.;; i obtained tkoush the Automobile Accidents compensation

l-i..it*"." iacLe), a component unit of the 
-commonwealth This insurance is compulsory for

;iiil;;;il;;.ed on priblic roads aad highwavs in Puerto Rico The annual premium is $35

per licensed motor vehicle, which is paid directly to ACAA'

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance mverage through the State Insurance

fund corpoiation lsfc), a component unit of the Commonwealth This insurance covers workers

,sainst iniuries. disability or death because of work or employmenlrelated accidents' or because of

ffi;;;;il;';;;;nfiuence of their emplovment worke6' compensation insurance premiums

"* 
J," p"a,f""tgf, ..nthly deductions made by CRIM from the Municipality's gross property tax

collectiofls.

The MuniciDalit! obtains unemploymenl comPensalion non-occupalional disability and driveA'

h:;;;;;t"- f* * .;;i.;t through 'a'ious 
insurance prograins adminisrcred bv lhe

loi-on r"nftft'Jo"pu.t "nt;f 
tabor and Human Resources (DoL)' Thes€ insurance prcgmms

;#;il;* ;;i;mployment and provide supplementary insurance cove"mg€ for tempomry

dishilitv or death tecause of uork or empioyment_reiated actidents or because of illness suffered as

;ffi;il;:i,h", ;pl.;.; u*l,pi"vmenr compensation' non-occ,pational disabilitv and

drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbu$erneni Dasls'

The Municipality also obtains medical insumnce covemge ftom seveml health insurarce companies

io. its #riiv*'.. oif"rent health i$urarce coverage an-d premium options arc rcgotiated €ach year

i," ,i" 
-rj"Li""r, 

Jrreasury on behalf of the Municipality The current insumnce Policies have not

#en canceled orterminated at June 10 2012'

r) R€servadons ofFund Balances

Res€wations offund balances represe portions offund balalc'es in the GFFS that are legally
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MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAI
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Fiscrl Year Etrded June 30' 2012

Rese ations of FuDd Balaoces - (cotrtinued)

Seoeeated for specific future [ses or are not appropriakd for €) pendirure ln March 2009' lhe

;:1;,;,;;"; ;l;;;;iing sond-a' eoard {cAisr'issuen cAsB 54 in * 
"fr-'l l' improve rhe

consistency in reponing ltnd balance com;onens enfiance fund balance presentalion improve the

,*n"r*..'oi n ri urlu"ce informarion and clariry rhe definition of the Sovernmental firnd types.

ln summary, GASB 54 introduces entirely new terminolory and classiflcation of fimd balances in

,*'"#J"iair-r""at. ft,i, n"* ttuna"tt aho establishei a hierarchy of fund classifications as

follows:

Non-spenalable amounts: That is, the fund balance which cannot be spent as they are associated

v,,ith assets such as inventory, pr"puid 
"*ptnt"', 

long term receivables or permanent fund

principal.

Spendabte aflounls: These amounts can be spenl but are classified based on tie rclarive strength

oflhe con\irains that control lhe purposes for which specific afiounls can be spent Beginning

with the most binding constraints, these classifications are:

Parri.red Frtrd Balance: This balance reprcsents amounts that are constmined for a

ffi"ir,"n,.osethrouehre5friclionsofextemaipanies{i.e.creditors,g,antors.contributors.
iii"". H''**rlii.*"oi otr't' g*"-t*")' or by constirutional provisions or enabling

i"gi r",r* pr"t."-i," it'" d"fi'ition of *restricred" in paragraph 34 of GASB 34' as

amended bY GASB 46.

Committed Fund Balance: This balance represenls nounls lhat are. consttained for

ffift prtp"*t -e""d by a lormal aclion of the govemmenf s highest level of decision

"l"n"g 
i",rfu,y 1i.e. amouns 

't'ni 
t'"'" t""' comm-itted by a goveming body legislation'

ordinanc€ or resolution to. u sp""iE" fu.po"e). Furftermore, fund balanccs crnnot be sued

for other purpose unles. ttt" gou"mrn"il titea t'e same acting it took to originally commit the

amounts-

As3iqned Fund Bslarce: This balance represents afilounts that are.co-nstrained by the

aovemmenl's intenl to be 
'sed- 

f* " tpoifi" purpose' but arc neither restricted nor

:;#ffi:' "r"i"ii ,r,*ri * 
"_r*ssed 

by ( r ) rlre'go,eming body itself (2) a body (e.s. a

budset commiftee) or om.r"r ,o i"lorn ifrJg;emin-g lody tL aelegaled authoritv tro assign

il:il;;;; ;; 'p*in. """*'" 
ttre iev disinction between committed and

assisned is thal commin"a ,on,".'JI * ty rhe high;st authority (i.e. Lhe board) and such

re#ctions can only be removed by this authority'

Unassigned Fu[d Balance: This balance represents tlrcresidual mounts for a govemmeds

General Fund; it includes att amounts thar are not classified in the previols three categories

i-.Ci"a, "i..*"a 
una ussign"a)' Furthermort only the Geneml Fund can report

u estricted fund balance
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MTIMCIPAIITY OF COROZAL
Not€s to Basic Finatrcial Statements

Fiscal Year [nded June 30, 2012

Credit Risk

Thefol|owingisessentialinformationaboutcreditrisk,interestrater.isk,custodiatcreditrisk,and
foreign excha:nge exposure of deposits and inveshnents ofthe Municipality at June 30, 2012:

Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparry to an investm€nt will not

-rlfi 

is obligutiors. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of
Puerto fuco, tlhe Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credil risk policy, the Statement of
Ihnifonn Invest nent Guidelines lor the Mu icipalities of the Commonwedlth of Puerto Rico'

issued by the Government De|elopment Bankfor Puerto Rico. Accotdingly, the Municipality is

only allowed to invest in obligations of the Commonwealth of Puert'o fuco, obligations ofthe

United States of America, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, bankes' acceptances or in

pools of obligations of the Municipalities of Puerto fuco, $r'Iich. are maflaged by GDB'

iccording to the aforementioned investment guidelin€s, the Municipality is not allowed to

invest in irarketable securities or any other type of investments (debt securities) for which cledit

risk exposure may b€ significant. Consequently, al June 10, 2012 and for the fiscal year then

ended,'the Municipaliry invested only in certificates ofdeposit in commercial banks, which are

insured by the Federai Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up to- a maximum of
$250,000 per depositor. No investments in debt ofe4uity securities were made during the fiscal

year endei Juni 30, 2012. Therefore, the Municipality's maragement has concluded that the

credit risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the

Municipality's deposits is considere-d low at June 30, 2012.

Interestraterisk-Thisistheriskthatchangesininterestratesofdebtinvestmentswill
ii .."fy um*tth" fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to

declines in fair values by: (l) not including debt or equity investments in its inv€stments

portfolio at June 30 201i, (2) liniting the weighted avemge matu ty-of its investments in

Lrtificates of deposit to periods of three months or less and (3) keeping most of its banks

deposits and certiitcates oi dePosit in interest bearing accounts generating interest at prevailing

.".k"t at". as re4uired iy t)rc Statement of tlniform Investment Guidelines for the

Municipalities of the Commo wealth of Puerto Rico, islued by the -Gorym:lt 
Dewlopment

Ba* ior herti Rico (the adoPted policy of the Municipality)' At June 30,2012' the interest

rateri-skassociatedwiththeMunicipatity'scashandcashequivalentisconsideredlowsincethe
investment portfolio of the MuniciPality c.nsists of certificates of deposit ard do not include debt

securities oi aay gpe of investments that could be affected by cha'ges in interest mtes '

Custodial credit sk - In the case of deposits, this- is-the risk that in the event of a bank failure'

th" M-,i"ip"li6"" d"p.sits may Dot be recovered Pursuant to the Statemenl of htestnent

C"iii" 1i in" c.i"r"^ent ;f fie Commonv"ealth of Puerto Rico' the talances deposited in

**."t"ii Ut*. ty tfr" Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpomtion

irili6l, g"r"*lly ip to a maximum of $250,000 per depositor' ln additlo1, Public tunds

a"*"iiJin commeicial banks bv the Municipality are tully collateral ized for the amounts

J"p.ri"a i" excess of the federal deposilory iniurance All securities pledge/ as mllateral are

fr"iJ t t" rta*l"lp"rty's name by the agents of the Commonwealth's Secrctary of Treasury'

i"posii" of coa, are uninsured and uncollateralized However, no losses relat€d to defaults by

GdB on deposit rransactions have been incured by the Municipality tkough June 30' 20l2 It is
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Fiscat Year Ended June30' 2012

2. Credit Risk

management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to minimize the

custJial credit risk, ercepl for GDB'

Therefore, the Municipality's management has conclude'l that at lune l0' 2012' the custodial

"r"iiiii.]i 
*t*i","a *i rt the Municiipal;ty's castr and cash equivalenrs is considered low'

Forcigoerchangensk-Thisistheriskthatchansesinexchangerates.willadverselyaffectthe
value of an investment or o a"potii 

- 

'q""otaing ti the aforeminrioned investment guidelines'

Jtpr"a'uiit" n,lr"i.ipulity. the M;icipality is"prevented fiom investing in foreipr securities or

-r'.irt",'rrp.. of iniesunents r- *rttrt rtt"ii' exchange risk exposure may be significant'

li."ii.n(.'-.-uo"n1.nr h". *nJa.d thui th. fo."ign exchange risk rel.ted to the

ft,lrni"ipifiO't a.p"tis is consider€d low al June 30' 2012'

J. Property Tates

The personal property lax is selfassessed by the taxpayer on a rehrm which is to be filed by May 15

of each year with the CRIM, a govemmental entity ireated by the Sovemment o{ Puerto fuco as pari

ofthe Municipal Govemm*tat a*onomy I-a.n, or August 199t. ieal property tax is assessed by the

CRIM on eacir piece of real estate and on each building'

The asses$nent is made as of January I of each year and is based on cunent values for personal

6r herrv and on estimated values as oi 195? for real property tax. The tax on perconal property must

LHj/;Hi ;il;. *i r, ii. ,"*rn by May 15. The rax on real properry may be paid in two

ilJil#;; i',"il;a l*ua'v r ' rhstPJt'i is responsibte for the billing and cotlections of real

*i*.."*f i."r"'"y "r* 
on b"h"lfoi"lltt'" municipalities of Puerto Rico' P'ior to the beginning

;, #ffii r".t[ innta i'rt"" the Municipality of the estimated 
^amount 

of property tax

exDefled to be collected for the ensuinffiscalye* itltougho't tlt"y"at' lhe CRIV adva'ces funds rc

;i|'-;;;-1il;;;; rne inida eitimated collections' rhe cR,, is required bv la* to prepare a

."oi."t ao"a*, on a fiscal year basis' whereby a comparison is mad€ between the amounts

advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected fiom taxpayers.This settlement hals to

;';;;;i;, "l*ri*"'v 
b*i;";;; t# three months after fiscal vear-end' and a final

senlemenl made nol taler lhan o* 
'ontftt "n"t 

year-end lf $e CRIM remils to the Municipality

ilr;;;;;.. *rtittt 
"'".r"" 

*- tt" ta; actually collected' a receivable fiom the CRIM is

recoldedatJune30.Howevel,"oa,-*.exceedtheamountactuallycoll€ctedbytheCNM,
defer€d revenue is recorded at June 30'

On January 26, 2000, Public ['aw 42 was eoacted which authorized the CRM to obtain a loan up to

$200 million, and for a ,"^ not "*Ji"g 
iO years' to allow- for the financing of the debt that the

ni""i"io"iiri", of Pueno Rico have *ith 
-dre 

in-uvt *iting fiom fina! settlements o[ propeny tax

advances compaled ro a"ruaf 
"orrections-Utrough 

fiscal lear le99-2000 The aflouots lhat tie

Municipalities will collect torn o"-uliitionul itoptny *t resulti.ng from the increases in the

subsidy liom the Central Govemm€nt to the Municipalities arc assigned through lhis law to repay
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COMMOI{Wf,ALTH OF PIJERTO RICO
MIDUCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic FiDancial Statemetrts

Piscal Year EDd€d June 30, 2012

Property Tares - (contitrued)

such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result ofthe Public Law 238, eMcted on Augst 15,

t999.

On Deaember 3, 2002, the Municipality entered into an agre€ment with the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico for the repayment of excess property tax advances determined in $l'133'772 As ofJune 30'

idiz, ,f,. *f",!a'*p"id propeny-tat advances presented in the- statement*of net assets amounted to

;;;t,54rand is payaute';n pe;oaic installmenis as determined bv the CRIM in a 30 years period

urtif tufy f, ZO:2, 
"i 

,.iable interest rate (Law 42 of 2000 as ammended by law 146 of 2001)'

Residedial real property occupi€d by its owner is exemPt by law fiom the payment ofproperfy taxes

onit" nrst Srs,Ooo oi tlt" 
".r"t""d 

value. For such exempted amounts' the Puerto fuco Tre€sury

O"pu*"n *ao."t pryment of the basic ta-x to the Municipalities, except for prop€rty assessed at

Ls! than $3,soo for which no payment is made. As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991'

,fr" r*".p, ulno*, a be paii fy tle Puerto Rico Tr€asury Deparhnent to the Municipalities was'

f.o*n * of f*uuty 1, 1992. i addition, the law grants a ta\ exemption 
- 

ftom the payment of

p"...r"i p..p"*V ** of up to $50,000 ofthe assessed value to retailers having annuat net sales of

Iess than $150,000.

The annual tax mte for fiscal year 2011-2012 is 9 83% for real property and 7 83% fo' personal

p..p".oy .f *fti"t 1.03% of both tax mtes arc for the redemption of public debt issued by the

bommonweatth ofPuerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as foltowr: (a) 8 80% and

i.itiy", *.p."iir"fy, *pres€nts the Municipality s basic property tax rate which is appropriated for

i*i". *a'"""ourt"a foi in the general funj A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization

n nJiog",tt". *i t n p"rcentag;ffte net reverllres ofthe Puerto Rico elechonic loftery and a subsidy

mrn tfi" Co.,nor,r"uru, ofiue*o Rico. From such tund, a distribution is made to all municipalities;

GJ iii"Z"."p."r"ro tt" ad valorem tax reslncte'l for debt service and accounted for in the debt

."*i"" ma.'m" Commonwealth also contributes an annual tax mte of 0 2% of the Property tax

collected arld such amount is accounted for similar to item (a) above'

Municipat License Trxes

The Municipality is authorized to imPose and collect municipal license taxes to. any natural or legal

""*., rr"riirn ti"a" - uusiness activiries within the territory of coRozAL. This is a self-assess€d

:;11;;"f ;;';;-;;1,.;"". volume of taxpavers, measured bv sross- revenues rhe

il*i"rr"#"."uirrrr"s the applicable ux rates. At June 30,2012, the municipal license tax mtes

#;t:iu;J uii.iliil i!.. r.so perc€nt for financial institutions and 0 50 percrnt for other

t,?€s of taxpayers.

Each taxDaver mu$ assess the corresponding municipal ticense ux by declaring the volume of

;ffi#tilgh;; ".. L'u. rlta 
"""ry 

np'it t s' based o,, lie.actual volume of business

ii*nu.., n"nlor"a in the preceding calendar year' Taxpa)ets wilh a sales volume of $l million or

H;'ffii i,;i;;;;rJiLJ-rin-"i"t it"t"-"ns *i't' rl'"i' ** '"t'- fitinss The tax can be paid bv

4.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Not€s to Basic Financial St'tements

Fiscel Year f,nded June 30' 2012

Municipat Licetrse Taxes - (cotrtinued)

the ta\payer in two equal installments due on July 15 and January 15' subsequent to the filing pfthe

i'*f"..:ifl" * apaLfs. The first installment oftte tax covers th€ six-month period €nded Decemb€r

ii, *Gr""t ai tfr" lling dare of the declantion, while the second in$allment of ih€ tax covers th€

.i,-m^nrh mrird ended June 30 ot rtre sutieq,ent calendar year. lfa l-&'(payer elecls lo pay the lax in

;:ii';;lhft,til;;ii;"-;";i;;;; igenerarrv n'p;t rs) a 5 perc€nr disc-ounr is g'anred

automaticallv on the lotal tax amount due Municipai lic€nse !&( revenues for lhe fiscal year ended

i,"" lo ZOi: 
"*orn*d 

lo $ 1,183.461 in the ac'ompanying financial stalements'

anv municioal license ta-xes collected in advancr (that is, pertainhg to a future fiscal year) are

;:il#'Xlffi; ""*r.t 
- 
u*"t""d municipal license tax revenues recorded in lie

""".*p*yirg 
cwrs *d CFFS amounted lo $843'52i ar June l0' 20l2 Ttis amount represenls the

;;i"i;ild";" raxes corresponding to fiscal year ending June.30'.2013 that were collected in

uar-"i a*ing *t" fr"t quarter ;f the cunent fiscal year, as required by law _

Sales and Use Tares

The Municipality imPoses a sales and use l.ax pursuanl to t$e provisions of1-lle Pueflo Rico lniemal

Revenue code. as ammded. 'l'he rax consrsts ofone percenl ( Lb%) on the saleslfice oftaxable items

;;';;;;;;" prices of all u*g", *orag", or consumPtion of taxable items' excluding

,rmf"J"". "if," salei and use tax is a self'asiessed tax collicted by the Municipality through

;;;,;1;t,' retums due on lhe twenlieti day of the immediale following month The lax retums ale

irlea Uy,f,. respective businesses that are required by law to withhold th" q-PT consLrmers on

.""i tj*ii. pilra*t.r service. Sales and *'t * t"utn'"' amounled to $l'082 088 for rhe fiscal

year ended June 30,2012.

The commonwealth of Puerto fuco imposes a separate state sales and use tax of 0 5o%' which is

^r".J ""J 
*if 

"".a 
ty de Pueno fuco ireas'rr1 oepartnent *rough mon$ly ta'x rrtum due on de

n".nti.rh.t,v 6fthe immediate tollowlng monrh. This 0.5% tax is adminisler€d by the Government

#lr#;i iJ.i-pr*"-n"" r"i ih. fo,o*ing purposes: (l) 0.2olo is deposired in the ne*

-Municioal Debl Service Fund", strrctly f;r ptaniinC;bans to the municipalities of Pueno Rico: (2)

.;;;'?;ffi"";il;;i ,r" -r"i*i.id 
'o"iiop*int 

r'na" perc€ntase' which .,ill be disributed

among all municipatities pursua[l to u to*oty formulal and (3) 0 t%'-for the creation of the

"Pednanem lmprovemeols nuna" to rc JtJiuitta by the t€Sislanre of the. Commonwealth of

Puerto Rico to carry out public wort<s and [rmanent iilprovemint projecrs in the municipalities of

Puerto Rico.

6. Intergovemmertal Receivables rtrd Payrbles

a. Due fmm 'PREPA' - in the g€neml fund principally consist of the amounts due from the

puerto Rico Electric power Authority ("PRbPA"J $1,7'71,771. This represents the amount

.""ti,lng to.,tt" *t"rlues the Munic;aiity is entitl€d to re{'€ive in lieu of payment oftaxes'
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COMMONWT,AITH OF PUERTO RICO

MI'MCIPAIITY OF COROZAL
Notcs to Basic Filr'ncial Statements

Fiscst Year End€d June 30' 2012

Intergovertrm€ntal Receivables and PNyabtes-(cotrtinu€d)

b. Dlte lrom other govemmetrl

Other Covemmental Funds:

Conmonwealth of PR- OCOP

Commonw€alth of PR- Office ofMunicipal Atrai6 (SBGP)

Commonwealth of PR_ Deparment oflnbor (l-aw 52 )

Cotumonwealth of PR - Elderlv Corffnission (Title III{)
Commonwealih of PR ' OCAM "Ordenamiento TeT itorial'

A.R.RA Funds

Federal Emergency Management Agency

US D€partrnent of Housing and Urban Dovelopment (Housing)

Sub-Total Other Govemmental Funds

Commonwealth ofPR _ Jolit Resolutions

Comnonwealth ofPR _ Departme t ofTmnsportation

Commonwealth of PR - Intergovemrnental r€venues

Total

$ 61,814

60,54
6t,643
34,140

52,831

36,186

12,692

21.208

$ 407.062

$ 37,069

$ 139,960

c. Due to oth€r goverolietrtal units ofthe geneml fund for se ices rendered to the

Municipality consists of the following:

Fl]ND

General

Other Govemmental

Joint Resolutions

Capital Project

Total

DUE FROM

$ E76,41t
2t6,122
151,0E7

t-399.042

$2.642,62

$r,771,7't I
60,526
7,99E

30,000
500

7 -873

$L87&668

DUE TO

$t,166,251
141,562
30,805

104-044

$2$4262

PR Electric Power Aulhority

PR Retirement System

PR General Services Administratio0

PR Sewer and Sanitary Authority

PR Transportation AuthoritY

PR Treasury DeParBnent

7. Inter-fundTransactioDs

lnter firnd - re&ivables and payables at June 30' 2012 are summarized as follows:

lnter-fund .ea€ivables and payables rEpr€sent the pending settlemmts of-the^aforementioned

*rrflo,;i"h ,* **idered by management to be fiill) r€alizable al Jure l0' 2012'
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COMMONWDALTE OF PUf,RTO RICO
MI]MCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Brsic Financial Statements

Figcal Year Edd€d June 30, 2012

Deferred Revenues

Defened revenues recorded in the accompanyiag GWFS ald the GFFS are as follows:

a. Generd fund:

A deferred revenue of $843,527 in the geoe'al ftnd is r€lated to municipal lic€ns€ ta\
collected in fiscat year 201t-2012 6rat will be eamed in fiscat year 2012-2013'

b. other Gov€r'lrmetrtal fu ls:

Federal GoverDme - The defenEd revenues pr€sented in other govemmental

firnds rcpresent the portion of federal grants r€ceived for 
-lr'hich 

quafirying

experditues have not been incuned. Deferred revenues from the federal Sovemment

are as follows:

Progra; Dcacriptiotr '
HUD Progra$
FEMA
HOPWA
Federal AgriculturB
Homeless Prevention

Total

9. I-ong-Term Obligetions

a) The general long-tem debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30' 2012 is as follows:

Bonds Payable

Notes Payable

Advances CRIM - Law
42

Advances CRIM - Law
146
Advances CRIM

Claims and Judgments

Compensated
Absences

Total

Baqinnino Borowinq
Balance Additions

$13,110,000 $

670,000

986,441

232,838
11,417

200,000

Pavmenta
Deductiona

- $ s05,000

- 35,000

- 22,899

- 11,087
- 11,417

- 200,000

$ 42,224

206,923
5,900

16,820

1.579

$ 213.446

Amount
Endinq due within
Balances 3-193!

$12.605,000 $ 400,000

635.000 40000

963.s2 24,337

221,751 11,087

110,303 164,915 2,037,000 160,000

$1?,3ro,rr, $ ,1,6
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COMMONWEALTE OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Not€s to Basic Financisl StatemeDts

Fiscel Year EDded June 30,2012

9. Irng-Term ObligatioN - (cotrtinued)

Historically, the general fimd has been used to liquidate certain notes payable, compensated absences'

iJod 
"ort 

ditntio**"rs anal any other long{em liabilities other than bonds'

b) BoDds Payable

The Municipality issues geneml obligation, special obligation and public improvement bonds to

ir-*lir" Lc;"iri.r, coirstnrction aid improvement ofcapital ass€ts' as well as' to finarc€ cortain

operating needi, including the payment to suppliers in cerlain circumstances'

The lavs and regulations of the commorwealth of Puerto Rico provide that tle Municipality's public

J"ii* r *rJitut" . nr$ claim on the available rcvenue of the Municipality. public debt includes

una. *a to,a. *.i"lpalion notes. The good faitlL credit and taxing power of fte MuniciPality are.

irrrvocably pledged for $e pmmpl payment oflhe principal and interest of bonds

For fuancial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds

repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30,2012:

GelerdllDlig3lles.Ee@:
$1,310,000 - 2002 serial bonds due in annual i'stallments

of$20,000 to $115,000, through July l, 2026;

with intercst rarSing ftom 2.7o/o to 5.61o

$1,310,000 - 2008 municipal general obligalion bonds

due in annual installrnents of $30p00 to $90,000, through

July 1,2033; (USDA) with intercst at 4-875%

$1,320,000 - 2002 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$20,000 to $115p00, through July 1,2026;

with interest ranging fio n 4.l7yo lo 5.3lyo

$470,000 - 2005 s€rial bonds due in annual installments

of$10,000 to $30,000, thmugh July 1, 2029;

with intercst rarying fiom 3 -2'Io/o to 5.31o/o

$2,010,000 - 20 t2 sp€cial obligation bond due in armual

Installments of $30.000 to $175,000 thmugh July 1, 2033

with vadable interest at 1 -5oZ over Prime

represent the total principal to be

Outstrnditrg
Apoupt

$ 1,025,000

1,220,000

1,055,000

390,000
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COMMOI\TWtrAITH OF PUERTO RICO
TVIIINICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Besic Finencial Stetements

Fiscal Year [nded June 30,2012

b) Bonds Payable - (contitrued)

$805,000 - 2012 special obligation bond due in annual

Installments of $25,000 to $85,000 through July l, 2024 with

variable interest at 1.5% over Pnme with a minimum of6 0%

Ou(stauding
. Amoupt

$750,000

$2,515,000 - 2010 speciat obligation bond due in annual

Installments of$65,000 to $340,000 through July l, 2035 with

variable interest at t .5olo over prime with a minimum of 65% 2'450'000

$3,420,000 - 2012 municipal general obligalion bonds due in

a.onual installmeds of$60,000 to $315,000, Orough July 1,2029

wilh valiable interest at 1.5olo over prime wilh a minimum of 6'0% 3'255'000

BoDds payable fiom the Getrersl Fund:

$305,000 - 2005 s€rial bonds due in annual hstallmenis

of$25,000 to $40p00, through July 1, 2014;

with intercst at 5.0% ll0'000

$505,000 - 2005 serial bonds du€ in annual installments

of$10,000 to $40,000, through July 1,2030;

with interest at 5.ff/o 435'000

Total bonds PaYable $ 12'605'000

c) Not€t payrble - The pnrceeds of lhe issuanc! of notes payables were used

ptirr"ip"fii oi ,fr" 
".qrisition 

and improvemert of major capit&t assets Notes payable

outstanding at Juoe 30, 2012 are as follows, 
Oooaodr*

4l4ss4

$5 10,000 - serial 0&09 loan pa)€ble (USDA) in

Annual iNtallnents of $ lor00 to $40,000 thrcugh

July l, 2033 with inter€st at 4.875olo' payable from

operaional fimd 480'000

$400,000 - special lottery tund loaa payable in

quarterly installmcnts of $10,000 to $40,000,
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COMMON\ EALTH OF PTIERTO RJCO

MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Finalcial Stltements

Fiscal YearEnded June 30, 2012

c) Notes Payabte - (continu€d)

through July l,2016; with interest at 5.0%

payable from operational fund

Total notes payable

Total bonds and notes Payable

Outstatrding
Amount

155.000

63s.000

$!1240-000

Va able interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by CDB and are based on

the fluctuation of GDB'S weighted avenge mte for its commercial Paper program I]nder

this pmgram, GDB issues commercial paper: (1) in the taxable and tax_exempt.markets of
ii" t'lnii"a slt". of emerica, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to corpomtions having

tax exemptions under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts'

Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds and notes payable are as follows:

Year EDding
June 30,
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-22
2023-27
2028-32
2033-37

Total

Pripciral --illerBt
$ 440,000 $ '7\0,774

475,000 782,535

490,000 755,198

480,000 '72'1,251

520,000 697,827

2,855,000 2,996,522

3,655,000 1,943,964

2,810,000 806,871

1.5 15.000 131.096

$ ,24r.000 $ 9152J38

At June JO, 2012, accrued interest payable on bonds and notes amounted to $349,160' which are

reported in the det t service fund and the statement of net assets'

Advsnces from- CRIM'-.This amount represents the balance owed to CRIM at June 30'

ZOfZ *f,i"tt will be repaid through a fi;ancing obtained by lh€ C-RIM^ uith^GDB' as

uuG.ir"J ty law and as explainid in this Note. The original debt of $1,133'772' of
G* /f-rLr.i" Sill,isa of Law 146 is amortized in periodic installm€nts 

-as- 
scheduled

below, the balance due under Law 146 is payable as determined by-the-CRIM during a

l0 rean period unlil Jul) I. 2032. LIMS 6aiance i: payabte unlil 2012' r,rilh \ariahle

inr.' sr raie. Current due balances are $s01.542 and $221.751 re'pecli\el)
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YearEnding
Juoe 30,
2013
20t4
2015
2016
20t7
2018-22
2023-21
2028-32
2033-37

Total

Law 146
Principal
$ 1r,087

I 1,087
I1,087
11,087
| 1,087
55,435
55,435
55,446

u2r-151

Irrt€rest
$ 73,041

10,821
6E,508
66,090
63,564

275,640
191,',l49
84,116

$194!t

COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RICO
MTIMCIPAIITY OF COROZAI
Notes to Brsic FiraDcial Stetements

Fiscal Y€ar Ended June 30, 2012

c) Notes Pryrble - (continued)

At June 30, 2012, accrued interest payable on advances fmm CRIM amounred to $33,260'

which is reported in the debt service fund and the statemelt ofnet assets'

Annual debt service rcquirements to maturity for Advances fiom CRIM are due as

follows:

Law 42

Priocipal
$ 24,137

25,866
27,492

31,055
187,114
2s3,163
344,t54
40.542

t263312

Competrsated absences The govemment-wide statement of net assets includes

$2,037,000 of accrued sick leave benefits and accrued vacation benefits and related

employer palroll cost, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs

from future op€mtions.

10. Capital Asseis

Capital asset$ those with an estimated useful live of five years or more fiom the time of

acduisition bv the Municipality and a cost of $500 or more, are primarily funded through the

i..ir""" Jiirea..* bonds and loans A summary ofcapital assets and changes occurring in

current year, in;luding those changes for infmstructure and construction in-progess pnBuant to

the impiementation oiGASB Staternent No. 34, follows Land and construction in progress

are not subject 10 dePreciation:

d).
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALTTY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMEI'ITS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital assets activiry for the fiscal y€8r ended June 30 , 20 I 2

GovcmD.nrrl A.tivhi6:

Capital 6st, dol being depEied:

Cotrshuclion in PmgrEss

Toel epital ar**s not bein8 d€Pr€cial€d

Capital 6sl5 being d€Precitl€d:

Buildings and building imprcvmeris
Site imprcv{t€iis

Equipfl€,r

Total capitar ass€ts being d€pr€ciarEd

l,€ss @ulated d?rcciari,on fd:
Buildings and building iDprevetnqlts

Siie impmtt'Mts

E4uipIMt

Tolal Mulal€d deprecialim

Totar €pital assd beinS &preciale4 ret

Gov.rDo.narl lctiriti.! capit l .$.8, r.t

Ewin.$ Typc Activitt:

Capital ass€! not being depr€ciat€d:

C.pilrl 6sers, being dePrecided:

BuildinSs atrd building inprovmats
EquiFrstt

Total @pital axs€ts being dePftciated

L€ss eumulabd depiEcirin foc
BuildinCs ed buildire iEproeeD€nb

Total eumulaled dQt€ciati@

Totar @pftrr sss.{s being d?reci.re4 nd

Bo.ire Typ. Activity CtPit l t ..rs' mt

Totsl Mllni.ipdliay C.pit l rt .tq tr.t

Jun€ 2011 Jun. 2012

$ 10.795,569

2.895,429

13.691,398

25,455,104
3,132.t08

t4,420944

\0ao,252
6,813.326

50.902J38

6,219.762

1.086,659

8,44&129

732,346
4,953,680

2t,440,576

29J61,762

s__ErlJ-{q

$ 10.7114,569

844,032

11,588,601

22,324,919

2,537,330

t3.174997

1,03E,463

6291,882

45,3?0,591

5,175,017

Lol4,a7
'1,124,170

653,153

4,6',7E\tt7

t9244,4W

26,t26.107

$ 37,1!iQq

51,000
2,051.791

2,102.797

3,130,7E9

594,714
r245947

4\749
514,44

5,531J47

444,145

72.632

1323959

79,t93
275,563

1196,O92

3,335,655

s 444,367

5,513.562

249.ffi
117,180

5,900,342

t2t1.3U
249,207

93,744
1,560,335

4)40,67

$ 1i!1311

r 4,4999E2

I10,671

r58

ll.7l8
122,547

(t22.541\

s,___!4t]4

r_l!ry!l.

$ 444,361

5,533,562

249,600
ll?,180

5,n0342

rJ28,055

249,365

1,682,882

4.217,460

$ !,66J,8r1

r !L!!1r!1
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COMMONWEAITH OF PIJERTO RICO
MUMCIPALMY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Finencial Statemenls

Fiscat Year Edded June 30,2012

11. Employees' Retirement Systeds

The Enployees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities (the

Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple-employers defined benefit p€nsion plan sponsored

by, and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco All regular

employees of the Municipality under 55 years of age at the 
'late 

of employment become

members ofthe Retirement System as a condition to their emPloyment'

The Retirement Syst€m provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation

enacted by the iommonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits arc available to

members ior occupational anal non-occupational disabilities Retirement benefits depend upon

age at retirernent and the number of yean of creditable service Benefits vest after ten years of
plan participation.

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have complete-d at least 25 years of creditable

service or members'who have attained 58 years of age and have complejed ten yean of
creditable service are entitled 10 an armual benefit payable monthly for life'

The amount of the annuity shall b€ one and one_half percent of the average compensation' as

defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable sewice up to twenty years, plus two

perc-ent ofthe average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number ofyears-ofcreditable

service in excess ofi0 years. [n no case will the annuiry be less than $200 per month'

Pafticipants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the

Merit Annuity. Participarts who have not attain€d 55 years of age will rec€ive 65 percent of the

average comiensation, as defmed; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average

com#nsation, as defined. No benefits are payable ifthe participant rec€ives a refund ofhis /her

accumulated conhibutions.

Commonwealth legislation re{uies employees to contribute 5 775% for the first S550 of their

monthty g.o., soiry aaa t.ilsN foi the excess over $550 of monthly grcss salary' The

fvfnnlcipairy is requirei Uy ttre same statute to c-ontribute 9 275% of trc participant's goss

sat"ry. iot i 
"onr.iu,.tions 

during the year ended June 30, 2012 amounted to $343,031-

On Septemba 24, 1999, an amendment to Act No 447 of May 15, 1951, which created the

netireirent Systeq was enacted with the purpose of establishing -a new. pension prograrn

(System 2000). Employees participating in the current system as of December 31, 1999' may

}f*', t" r"y in tue'deirned'beneht pl; or transfer to the new pmgram Persons joining the

Municipality on or after January l, ,000, will only be allowed to be'ome.members of system

iOOO. iy""in ZOOO *iU reduce the retirement age ftom 65 yea$ to 60 for those employees who

joined the current Plan on or after April 1, 1990.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also kno$n als a.ctsh balancellan Under

tliis ne* plarl there will be a pool of pension assets, which witl be invested by ERS' together

with those ofthe current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth ofPuerto fuc-o will not
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COMMOI\WEALTH OF PTIERTO RICO
MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAI
Notes to Basic rinancial ststements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012

1 1. Employees' Retiremetrt Systems - (continued)

suaranlEe benefits at retirement age. The annuity v/ill be based on a formula which assumes that

!u.iv*. ,r'. ..proy."'s contribition {with a minimum of 8 275% of the employee's salary

,p io'" .*i-.. oi ro%) will be invested in an account which will either: (l) eam a fixed rate

blsed on the t*o-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to 75% ofthe

raum ofthe gnSt investment portfolio (net ofmanagement fees)l or (3) eam a combination of

tott 
"lt"artiu"r. 

Participants will receive periodic account statements similar to those of

aeir-nea contribution plans showing their acarued balances Disability pensions will not b€

g.rnt"a *a". Syu". 2000. The em-ployers' contribution (9 275% ofthe employee's salary) will

b€ used to fund the current Plan.

Additional information on the Retirement System is pmvided in its financial statements for the

V"rr "ra.a 
lr* 30, 2012, a copy of which can be obtained liom the Retirement System'

Minillas Station, P.O. Box 42005, San Juan, PR 00940'

12. Commitments atrd Cotrtingencies

The Municipality is defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to malters- inc idental to the

oerformance ofroutine gouemmental opemiions Under Public Act No l04 ofJune 25' 1955' as

L"rrJJ ,.*n. uo 
"ithorized 

to sui the MuniciPality only for caus€s of actions set forth in

*it e,"tio u .oi.u. aflount of $75,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to

,io." ii- on" poton o. where a single injured party is entitled !o several causes ofaction lt is

,r*ug"."rft .pl"i.r, based on ttre advlce ot ttre legal counsel, that lhe potential claims against

,fr" l4i:ri"ipdi y *, 
".vered 

by insurance will not materially affect the financial c'ndition of

the Municipality.

The Municipality has reported committed fund balance, for the outstanding encumblances

.-.rriing oi Soir,so+ in the Seneml fund at June 30, 2012 The Municipality intends to honor

tf,.". 
"n"i.U*r."r. 

*t ich lviil continue to be liquidated under the current year's budget during

a lapse period that extends into the subsequent fiscal year'

The Municipality has reserved and committed funds for outstanding constniction project

;;t;il; it 6Pt"*matelv $6,100,000 at June 30, 2012 for the constructron and or

;;-.;;;;1J.4'6" Afltiqu; Th;ater, Public Park, Recreational Facilities' Infi'astmctuie and

other construction Projects.

The Municipatity receives financial assistance from the fed€ral Govemments of the tlnitei states

.ii-J*"_J'o" c".monwealth in the form of grants and entitlements. RecEipt of grants is

g"""a"ify-"".aLm"a ,pon compliance wilh terms 
-aod 

conditions of the gra't agreem€nts aod

Loticaule tederat laws and regulations. including fie expenditur€ of resources for eligible

"*,#;.. ;;;;i;;ir, l*p."?in".t hnanced bf tlese prograrns are subject ro financial and

;.*J;;; ";;l;;r'ri" 
nip.p.i",. grantor' Disallowarce as a result of these audiis mav

become liabilities of the Municipalif .
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MTINCIPALITY OF COROZAL
Not€s to B,!ic Financial Statements
Fisctl Yesr Ended June 30' 2012

12. Commitrnents alrd ContilrgeDcies - (contitrued)

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipmgnt under seveml op€mting

i"u"" ug.""*"ns, *rt;"f, geniraliy have termiofotre year or less and are automatically renewed

ioi th""""." t"..r. n"nt"'l 
"*p"ndituto 

.eco.d"d in the general fund and in other govemmental

inJ. f.ifr" y*t *a"a June 30,2012, amounted to $100'7?5 Management believes that the

;;;;;;ii," tuture minimurr rental comnitments under non cancelable real proPerty and

equipmint lease with terms exceeding one year is not significant'

13. Subs€quent evetrtt

In October 15, 2012lhe Municipality issued a Genetal Obligation Municipal Note in the amount

of $505,000, through the Govemmental Development Bank (BGF) of Pu€rto Rico'

14. Prior Period Reclassific&tion

A prior period reclassificltion was made to the fiscal year ended June 30' 20ll finarcial

statements of Govemmental Fuds, to pr€senl as a liability the amounts wittrheld ftom

employees who were presented as Non_sp€ndable Fund Balam€ as ofJune 30' 2011'

Other Total

General GoverDmental Governmental Governmental

Fund Fupds Funds Activities

Fund balance as reported

in June 30,2011 $1,338,808

Reclassificationtoliability 2E0-533

Fund balance as corr€cted $IJl82?5

$31S,508 $13,784,914 $34,718,623

:4_!55 l07.q9l 107.99t

$29r,050 $13-J15l.21 V4Al!-632

(Ihis space rd i\lentio@ltv lel in bluk)
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COI'TiTONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

BUDGETARY COi/lPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

ORIGINAL FINAL

VARIAI{CE WITH
ACTUAL FI AL BUDGET

AiIOUNTS Positive{Neqalive}

RESOURCES (inflows):

Property Taxes
Volume of Business Taxes
Govemment of P.R. Contributions
Contributions in liew of taxes
Sale and use tax
Construction Tax
Charge for seNices
Rent
lnterest
Prior year superavit
Other -

Amounts available fo. appropriations

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (out flows):
MunicipalConcil
Mayor offce
Finance
Public work
Health
Emergenry management
Municipal Police
Personnel
Sports and recreation
Sanit€tion
Elderly Centers
Municipal Secretary
Public Relations
lnternel Auditor
Purchases Deparlrnent
Planning and Oevelopment
Vice-Mayor
Citizen Help
Hisiorical Turistic Center of Cibuco
Recicling

Total charges to appropriations

Excess (defciencr) resour@s over charges

$ 1,664,411 $ 1,664,4t1 $ 1,664,411 $ -
1.100,000 1.17'l.643 1,181,180 9,537
5,556,768 5,958,938 5,958,938
1,812jfi 1,812,156 1,812,',!56
1,000,000 1,080,439 1,081,525 1,086
340,000 636,876 683,830 46,954
233,s00 307,409 310,363 2.954
12s,000 125,000 168,694 43,694
200,000 365,375 365,375

- 658,231 658,163 (68)

325,950 517,A82 536,668 18,786

12,357,785 14,298,360 14,421.303 122,943

154,058
478,663

s,019,853
2,223,812

472,653
323,0'18
482,607
124,734
467,403

1,189,663
159/62
120,761
216,869

79,8'19
107,499
58,839
43,229

212,361
350,682
71,796

154,058
474,156

6,964,158
2,733,425

472,653
188,066
407,625
72,276

492,528
1,048,346

119,171
109,'t 85
32E,551

31,029
86,361
3A,782

3,619
195,498
310,724
68,149

105,066
474,156

6,915,802
2.732,066

458,331
188,066
407,625
72,276

490,217
1,046,992

'118,870

109,185
328,551

31,029
86,261
38,742

3,619
195,498
3'10,337
68,148

48,992

48,356
1,359

14,322_

231;
1,354

301

,o:

387
1

12.357.785 14.298.360 14.1A0.877 117,483

$ $ -$ 240,426 $ 240.426

The
See

accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

auditois report.
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COMi'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

BUoGETARY COIIIPARISON SCHEoULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI2

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

ORIGINAL

VARIA}ICE wlTH
ACTUAL FINAL BUOGET

AITOUNTS Positive{Neoative}

RESOURCES (inflotfls):

Property Taxes

Sales Taxes (lVU)

Other

Amounts available for approp.iations

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (out flows):

Long term loan amortizauon

lnterest on long term debt

Other - reserve

Totial charges to appropriations

Excess (deficiency) resources over charges

656,860 $

656.860 6s6,860 1 ,220,085 563,225

656,860 $ 837,437

382,U8

180,577

382,648

2'15,000

428,360

13,500

6s6,860

215,000

428,360

656,860

460,000 (245,000)

655,938 (227,578\

't3,500

1,1'15,938 (459,078)

$ $ -$ 104,147 ryUl

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

See audto/s aeport.
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COMMOITWEALTII OF PI]ERTO RICO
MIINICIPALITY OF COROZAL

NOTES TO BTIDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDI]LE
YEAR ENDED JI'IIX 30, 2012

NOTtr 1. STEWAR.DSHIP. COMPLIANCE AI{D ACCOI]NTABILITY

A. Budgetary Control

The Municipaliry's annual budget is preparcd on the budgetaJy basis ofaccounting, which
is not in accordance with GAAP, and repres€nts departnental appropriations

recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the

beginning of the fiscal -year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the

Municipal trgislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as Mayo/s
Resolutions, do not require the approval ofthe Municipal Legislatue.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbiance accounting is used. The encumbmnces (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incuned. . For GAAP
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstandil8 at year+nd are reported as rcservations of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments
will be honored during the subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance ofany appropriation at the end ofthe fiscal year will lapse at

the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations,

are continuing accounts for which the Municipal l,€8islature has authorized that an

unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current
spending.
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COI'MONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
itut{tctPAlrw oF coRozAL

SCHEOULE OF EXPE O]TURES OF FEDEML AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUI{E 30, 2OI2

FEDEMLGMNTORYPASS THROUGH GRANTOR
PROGRAM TITLE

US DEPARTMEI{T OF HOUSING AXD URBA DEVELOPITENT
Direct Programs:

Housing Choace Voucher
lndirecl Program:
Passed lhrough P.R. Office of Municipel Affairs
Housing Oppo.tunities for Persons wilh Aids (HOPWA)

Homeless Prevenlion
State Elock Granl Program (SBGP)

Total US Oepartment of Housing and Urban Development

US DEPARTTIEiIT OF HEALTH AI{D HIJIIAN SERVICES

Passed through P.R. ofiice of Municipal Affai6
Amedcan Recovery and Reinvestment Acl (ARRA)
Passed lhrough P.R. Elderly Commission

Title lll, Parl C, Nutmion Services

Total US Department of Health and Human Servic€s

FEDERAL ET{ERGENCY iIANAGE EI{T AGEI{CY
Direct Program:

Public Assistance Grants

US DEPART EiIT OF JUSTICE

Direct Program:

Public Safely Padnership and Communrty Policing Grants (Cops)

Justice Assistance Grant (ARRA)

Total us Department of Justice

US DEPARIIIIEI{T OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through Caguas Area Office
Rural Economic Developmefll Loans and Grants

Federal Agricullure

FEDERAL TRAI{SPORTATIOI{ ADTIINISTRATIOT{
Passed through PR Departrnent of T6nsportation and Public Works
Awads 200S2012

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

The accompanying not€s are integral part of the fnancial statemefits.

See auditofs repod-

FEDERAL
CFDA

t{UMBER

14.871

14_241
14_262
14.228

93_383

93.045

16.710
16.803

2012
EXPENDITURES

$ 723,154

42.177
275,200
523,223

1.563,754

83.544 MP 354,473

10.854

20.509

112,767

213,643

326,410

6,822
26,990

33p12

43,340

-,-riir1
$ _3?i9p

MP = Maior Proqram



NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

COMMONWEALTH OF PI]ERTO RICO
MIJMCIPALITY OF COROZAI

Notes to the

Schedule of Expenditures of Fedeml Awa.ds
June 30,2012

GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the

feieral grant activity ofthe Municipality of COROZAL of the Commonwealth of
Puerto fuco and is presented on the accrual basis of ac€ounting. The Municipality
ofCOROZAL reporting entity is defined in Note I to lhe Municipality's basic

financial statements. The infomation in this schedule is presented in accordance

with the requirements of oMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local

Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Thercfore, some amounts presented

in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in the basic financial

statements-

RELATICiNSHIP TO TIII BASIC FINANClAL STATEMENTS

Federal financial assistanc€ revenues and expenditures are reported in the

Municipality's general-purpose fuancial statements as other Sovemmental
firnds and capital project fund under the accrual basis of accounting. The

r€conciliation between the exflenditures, in the financial statemenl and

expenditures in the schedule of expenditures for federal awards is as follows:

Expenditures in the financial statements

Irss: Non-Fedeml Expenditures

Total Federal Expenditures

- s23.275,485
- (19,999,192)

$fg5p1

FEDERAL CFDA NI]MBER

The CFDA number included in this schedule were determined based on the

progmm name, review of glant conaact information and the OfEce of
Management and Budget's Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

60



ruAN A. RIVERA, CPA
CERTIFIED PTJBLIC ACCOI'NTANT

PtIG:781-1E4-n55
Fd:7aT7&+2250

Elfr iI jml€.io@hotuil.coo

IJKR rrvrfiowN, Iala DEL UALE AW ?OA 8r'ft, ?7 OO949

RXPORT ON INTERNAI CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RPORTING AI\ID ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTIIER MATTERS BASf,D ON AI\ AI]DIT OF FINAI\CIAL STATtrMENTS PERFORMED

IN.ACCORDAIICE WTIH GOWRNMENT AI]DITING STANDARDS

To the Honomble Mayor and

the Municipal Assembly

MunicipdliU of Coruzal
Corozal, Puerto fuco

We have audited tie lmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business_type activities, each

major tund and the aggregate remaining tund infomlatiort of $e MuairipdiE of Coroul as of a,Jd f$ the

yir endd June 30 2012, which collectively c-omprise $. M nicipaliry of C,nzal is basic financial

statements and have issued our rcport thereon dated Decerntte, 13, 2012 We conducted our audit in

accordance with auditing standards generally a(epted in united states of America and the standffds

applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Stou:|41rds, issued by the Comphollet

General olthe United States.

Intemel Contml over Financial Reoorting

Management of Municrpelity of coroal is responsible for establishing and maintaininS eflective intemal

contro] over financial reporting. In plarming aad performing our audit, we considered Muoicipality of
Corozal's intemal controi overfinaniial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing proc€dues for lhe

purpose of expressirg our ophions on the fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectivenesi of Mu cipality of Corozal's intemal conhol o'"er fmarcial reporti[g'

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of corozsl's intemal

confol over fmancial reporting.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allow management

or employeeg in the normal course of performing their assigrcd functions, to preitn! or detect 
'nd 

cofi€ct

missarements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, h
inkrnal c_onhol such that there is a reasonable possibility tlat a material misslatement oflhe entity's financial

stal€ments will not be prevented, o. detected and c-orrected on a timely basis'

our consideration ofintemal control over financial reportinS was for fhe limited purpose described in drc first

oaraqraoh of this section and w6s not desifFed to identis all deficiencies in intemal conlrol over financial

i"po-'tini tfrut ,ight b. aeficiencies, significant deficiencies or matenal wealnesses We did Dot identify any

a#"i"niio i, tl-ut *ntol over fi;cial reporting that we consider to be material weakness€s, as defined

previousty. e signlficant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination or deficiencies, in incmal contIol tllat is

ieo ."uer" ttt- a male.ial weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by $ose charged with

governance.

Comnlirnc€ and Other Matters

As prrt ofobtaining reasonable assu?Irce about whether the Municipality of corozal financial statements are

ft€e of material riisstatement, we performed tesls of its compliance with c€rtain provisions of laws,

Mailing Mdress Box 757, t orado. m 006146



rcgulatrons, contracts, and grant ageemenls, noncomplianc€ with which could have a direct and material

efie.ct on the daermination of financial statements amounts. However, providing and opinion on compliance

with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 1,!e do not express such as an

opinion. The rEsults ofour tests disclosed instanc€s ofnoncompliance or other malters that are required to be

reported under Govemment Auditifig St@dords a d which ale described in the accompanying schedule of
findings ard questioned msts as items (12{1, l2-02 and 12-03).

We noted certain rnatteB thal we reported to managfi]f,nt of Municipalir! of Corozal n a separate letter

datd December 13, 2012.

Muticipality of Corozolb, respons€ to the findings identified in our audit is described in the acc.mpanying

scheduie of furdings and questioned costs. we did nol aJJ.dn Muiicipolily of Corozd's response an4

accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This r€port is intended solely for the information and us€ of management, ofthe Honomble Mayor and

The M;icipal Asxmbly of Municipality oJ C'orozal, arld federal awarding agencies and pass-d[ough

entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other tha[ these specified parties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLANCE WITH REQUIREMENTAS THAT

COALD HA'/E A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAIOR PROGRAM AN ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLANCE N ACCORDANCE IYITH OMB CIRCUL4R A.133

To the Honorable Mayor and

the Municipal Assembly

Municipalir! of Coruzal
Corozal, Puerto fuco

ComDliance

we have audited Maac{o al y orcorqot's carnpliance with the types of mmpliam€ requirements described

nttrc OfufB Cncular A-1fi Conplionce &Pplerren, that could have a direct and rnaterial effect on each of
the Municipaliry ofcorozal's major federal programs for the year ended "ftr& 30' 2012. The Municipality of
corozol,s'rn$Ctr federal Fograrns arc identified in the summary of audito/s results s€ction of the

accomparryingscheduleoffindingsandquestionedcosts.Compliancewithther€qniremenrsoflaws.
regulations, cont'acs, and gants applicable to each of its major fede*l programs is the r-esponsibility of the

M'unicipality of Corozal's management. Our responiibility is to express ut opii(m oi rhe M&rieipaw of
Corozal's carr,plt t@based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in acrordance with generally ac.€pted auditing standards; the

standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in GoveBmental Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller iieneral ofthe United Stales; and OMB Circular A-131, Adits of Stales, t-ocal Govemments,

and Non-Profit Organizations. Those Staralards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plal! and perform

the audit to obta; r€asonable assumnce about whether noncompliance with the Bpes of compliance

requi€ments referred to above tiat c.uld have a dir€ct and material effect on a major fedeml program

occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about trc MultitiPaliE oJ Conzal's

compliaace with those requircments and performing such othe6 procedures as we considered necessary in

the c_ircumstances. we believe that our audit provides a rcasonable basis for oul opinion. our audit do€s not

provide a legal determin ./.ion of the Murii.ipaw of Corozol's cornpliall.ce with those requircmenLs'

As descriH in items 12-01. 12'-02 ad 12-03 in fie accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

([sts, trc MunicipaliE of Comza! diLd not comply with r€quirements regading cash management' repo'ting

and 6avis Sac.n AJt tiat are applicable to its SBGP Program. Complianc! with such requirements is

necessary, in oul opinion, for M;;icipalit of Corozal to comply with the requirEments applicable to thal

pmgram

Intemal Contml over ComDliance

ManaSement of the rt /r, icipaliE of Comu! i responsible for establishing ar1d maintaining effective intemal

condi over compli.nc€ ,"itr *re requircmens of laws, regulations, cont acts, and grant applicable to fedeml

progiams. In planniry and performing our audit, we clnsidered $e Municipoliq of CorozAl's i,Itefil.?'l

coniot ore. -.pliuac" wi6 requiremenS that could have a direct and rnatefal effect on a major federal

program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpessing ourcpinionon compliaice and to

iest"aad report on tie intemal coitrol over compliance in accordance widr OMB Circular A-133, but not for

the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiven€ss of intemal control over complianc€. Accordingly,

Mailing AddEss Box 757, oolBdo. PR 00&16



we do not exprcss an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Corozal's intemal control over

compliance.

Our consideralion of intemal confol over compliance *es for the limited purpose descriH in the prec€ding

paragraph and was not designed to identiry aI deficiencies in intemal control over complianc-€ that might be

significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies,

significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we

identified certain deficiencies intemal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiency.

A deficiancy in intemal control over complialces exisls when the design or operation of a mnftol over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in lhe normal course of Prforming their assigned

functions, to prevent or detect ard correct" nonmmpliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that

material noncompliance with type of compliarce rcquirement of a federal progmm will not be prevented or

detect€d and co €cted, on atimely basis.

A significa deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency or a combinalion of deficiencies,

in internal control over complianc€ with a t ?e of compliance rcquirement of a fedeml Program that is less

severe than a material v/eakness in intemal contsol ov€r compliance yet important enough to merit atlention

by lhose charged with govemanc€. We consider the deficiencies in intemal control over compliance

described in the accompanying schedules offmdings and questioned costs as items (1241, l2{2 and 12-03)

lo be signifi cant.defi ciencies.

Municipality of Corczal's response to the findings identified in oul audit is described in the accompanying

scheduli of hndings and questioned casts. We did not audit Municipality of Corozal's response an4

accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

This report is intended sofely for the information and use of management of the Honorable Major and the

Mtoticipal Assembf of rfu Municipality of Corozal, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities

and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than thes€ specified parties.

Decamber 13,201
Toa Baj4 Puerto Rico

Stafrp No- 2662400 ofPu€rto Ri@ Society ofcenified Public Account nts wd affixed lo the r@od copv ofthis repon'

!tc.,2214
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COMMONWEALTE OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

SHEDULE OF FTNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEARENDED JIJNE 30.2OI2

Sectiotr I: Summlrv of Arditor's Result

Financial Statements

Type ofauditor's report issued: unqualified opinion

Intemal Control over financial repofiinS:

Materi.l wealoess (es) identified?

Significart Deficiencies identified that arc not

Considered to b€ material wea.loess?

Noncomplianc€ material to fmancial slztements noted?

f,'€deral Awards

Intemal Control ove. major progmms:

lv{alerial wea}mess (es) identified?

Significa Defciencies identified that are not

Comidered to be material wealoess?

Type ofauditor's r€po( issued on compliance for
major progrEss: qualifi ed:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported irl accordance wilh section 510 (a) of
Circular A-133?

Y€s -LNo
X Y€s _No

_ Yes X_ No

xNo

X-Yes 

-No

X Yes No

Identifi cation of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Nsme oftrederal Proeram or Cluster

14-228 State Block Grant Progmm

14.871 Housing Choice Voucher

93.383 American Recovery and R€investrnent Act

83.544 Public Assistant Grants

20.509 Fedeml Transpofiation and Public Wo*s Awards 2009-2012

Dollar tbreshold used to distinguish between twe A and t$€ B programs: $300,000

Audited qualified as low-risk audie 
-X- 

Yes 

- 

No

Sectiotr lL Firrtrcial Ststement Fitrdinss

None
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Sectior III: Federal Awards Findinss and O{estion€d Cost

My examination ofcompliance wiih federal requirements ofthe Municipality ofcorozal, for lhe year ended June 30,

2012 disclosed that 8l?ni5 funds were administered in a satisfaclory mamer, except for the following situation:

SBGP- CFDA No. 14.228

Condition l2-01- Cash Manas€metrt

The voucher Program should minimize the time elapsing between ffansfers of fedeml funds flom agency (ocAM)

and disbursement to suppliers.

Criterie

Code of Federal Regulation 24 85.2t (5) Written prccedures to minimize the time elapsing between the trasfer of
funds to the recipient from the us Treasury and the issuance or redemption ofch€cks, warants or pa)'ments by other

means for program purposes by the recipient. To the extent that the provisions of the Cash Management

Improvemeot a"t (Cfvffal Gub. L. 101.453) govem, payment methods of State agencies, instrumentalities, and

fisical agents shal be consistent with CMIA Treasury State Agreements or the CMIA default procedures codified at

3l cFR part 205,.Withdrawal ofcash ftom the Treasury for Advances under Federal Grant and other Program".

Cause

The Municipality does not make payments as soon as they receive the funds.

Effect

The Municipality does not follow the procedures established by federal laws'

Recommendation

Establish the procedures needed to disburse payments within a reasonable time after receive the funds HUD as the

Federal Regulation established.

Auditee Repotrs€

The finance director gave instruction to the employee in charge ofthis area in older to corret the issue mentioned

above-

SBGP- CFDA No.14.228
Condition l2-02 - Ouarterlv ReDort

The Municipality did not comply with the requirement ofpreparing and filling itsfederal fnancial reports on a

timely basis. Du;ing our examination of the Federal Financial Reports, we noted that the Municipality did not send

on time the quarterly report for the following period ended.
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Condition l2-02 - Ouarrerltlepai f(q!!!s-c3!!

Quarterly

July . September 201 I

January - March 2012

April - Ju(e 20 12

Criteria

Due/Date

October 30, 201 I

April 30,2012

\rly 30,2012

Date Submitted

November 9, 20 I I

May 3,2012

A$g].tst 27 ,2012

The Municipality is not in compliance with 24 CFR 85 40 (b) (1) which requires federal fund recipients to

periodically monitor the performance ofgmnt-supported activities to €nsule dlat time schedules ar€ being met
projected work units by time p€riods are being acaomptished, and other performance goals are being achieved by the

preiaration of federal financial reports. To achieve these goals, prograin management should prepare accurate and

tim;ly federal financial reports. The Municipality should submit quarterly or semi-annual reports 30 days after the

reporting period. The office ofMunicipal Affairs granted ten days to this rcporting requirement

Caus€

The above situation occurr€d because the Municipality did not ensure to veri& and understand its repoltinS

rcquirements fot this progam.

Effect

The contidued failure to file the required reports may result in sanctions by the Federal grantor, such as grant

payment withholdings.

RecoEmetrdatior

The Municipality should veri! and become familiar with all administ ative requiremeots applicable to each federal

frnancial assistance progam, especially when new grants are received. This can be achiwed by obraining the

information applicable io the program from lhe pass-thru grantor, federal grantor, or the Catalog ofFed€ral

Domestic Assistarce ("CFDA"), which is available from federal gov€mment.

Audit€€ RespoDse:

The major give the inshuctions to the, Federal Affairs Director, to immediately correct this sihratior for the fust

quarter of2013.

CDBG- CrDA No.14.228
conditiotr 12-3 - D.vis Bacotr Act

The Municipality is not in compliarce wilh 29 cFR part 5, 'labor standards Plovisions APplicable to contracts

goveming iederally Financed and Assisted Co*truction-. Se.tion 5:5 and 5:6, which rcquires lhat for all

tn"trr"io, contracts in excess of $2,000 financed by federal assistanc€ fimds includes a clause wherc the

coflhactor or sut contactor comply with the requiremens ofthe Davis Bacon Act. This includes a requirement for
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Condition 12-3 - Davis Bacon Act (continufltion)

rhe contractor or subcontractor to submit to the Municipality weekly, for each week in which any contract work is

performed, a copy ofthe payroll and a statement ofcompliance (certified payrotls)'

- Cause and Elfect

TheMunicipalityisnotrequiringtothecontractorsenouEhdocumentationtodeterminateiftheyareunderthelaw

"o.pliun"".. 
Thi. situ"tion stronis poor intemat controls iver the compliances r€quirements establish by the federal

_ 
law.

Recommendatiotr:

The Municipality must include the require'l clauses in all construction contracts financed by federally assistanc€

funds. and enforce this clause.

Auditee ResPonse:

Themajorgivetheinstructionstothe,FedemlAffaimDirectottoimmediatelycorrectthissituationforthefirst

- quarter of20l3.

(This space was inlentionallv Iefi in bla* )
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Program Finding/Complirnce stetus

Condition 10_01: 11_01 -C'sh MaDagement

SBGP-CFI,A Still

lf". rl.zfs The Voucher Progmm should minimiu the time elapsing Prevails

b€tween transfers of fedeml funds from agency (OCAIO and

disbursement to suppliers'


